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       1                        P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  With that, Commissioners, we

       3       are -- staff, would you.please read the notice.

       4                 MS. WILLIAMS:  By notice issued June 17th,

       5       2009, this time and place has been set for an

       6       administrative hearing in Docket No. 090172-EI, petition

       7       to determine need for Florida EnergySecure Pipeline by

       8       Florida Power & Light Company.  The purpose of the

       9       hearing is set out in the notice.

      10                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Let's take the

      11       appearances of the parties.

      12                 MR. BUTLER:  John Butler on behalf of Florida

      13       Power & Light Company.  Also appearing for Florida Power

      14       & Light Company will be Gary Perko and Carolyn Raepple

      15       of the Hopping, Green & Sams firm, and Scott Goorland of

      16       FPL.

      17                 MR. SELF:  Good morning, Commissioners.  Floyd

      18       Self and Robert J. Telfer of the Messer, Caparello &

      19       Self Law Firm, appearing on behalf of Florida Gas

      20       Transmission.

      21                 MS. BROWN:  And Martha Carter Brown and Anna

      22       Williams on behalf of the Commission staff.  And, Mr.

      23       Chairman, if I might introduce our legal intern, Jason

      24       Arnold.  He's been with us for the summer and has helped

      25       on this case.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Welcome, Jason.  Welcome.

       2                 MS. HELTON:  Mary Anne Helton, advisor to the

       3       Commission.

       4                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Staff, are there

       5       any preliminary matters?

       6                 MS. BROWN:  No, Commissioners, there really

       7       are no preliminary matters.  No witnesses have been

       8       excused.  I would point out that the notice of the

       9       hearing provides for public testimony.

      10                 There is one stipulated issue, Issue 12, which

      11       the Commission could address after public testimony, if

      12       there is any.

      13                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Let's see.  Are there

      14       any members of the public that came to testify today?

      15       Any members of the public?  Any public testimony?

      16                 Okay.  Hearing none, Ms. Brown.

      17                 MS. BROWN:  All right.  Mr. Chairman, Issue

      18       12, which is on Page 13 of the Prehearing Order, is

      19       stipulated.  Staff recommends that the Commission

      20       approve the stipulation as proposed.

      21                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Just outline it.  Just kind

      22       of run it down.

      23                 MS. BROWN:  Commissioner, yes.  Issue 12 deals

      24       with notice where the parties and FP&L have agreed to

      25       provide notice of the costs of the proceeding and detail

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         8

       1       the final cost within 90 days of completion of the

       2       project.

       3                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler, is that correct?

       4                 MR. BUTLER:  That is correct, yes.

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self?

       6                 MR. SELF:  Yes.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners, any questions

       8       or concerns?

       9                 Staff, your recommendation on --

      10                 MS. BROWN:  Staff recommends that the

      11       stipulation be approved.

      12                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Edgar?

      13                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Chairman, I would

      14       move that we adopt the proposed stipulation.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Second.

      16                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  It's been moved and properly

      17       seconded.  Commissioners, any further questions, any

      18       discussion, any debate?

      19                 Hearing none, all in favor, let it be known by

      20       the sign of aye.

      21                 (Unanimous affirmative vote.)

      22                 All those opposed, like sign.  Show it done.

      23                 Staff, you're recognized.

      24                 MS. BROWN:  Next, Mr. Chairman, we have the

      25       Comprehensive Exhibit List that staff has passed out for
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       1       the Commissioners' convenience.  It's in your books, the

       2       first volume.  We ask that you mark and move the exhibit

       3       list itself into the record as Exhibit 1.  And we --

       4                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  One second.  Hang on a

       5       second.

       6                 MS. BROWN:  Okay.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Any objection of the parties

       8       to moving the exhibit list in?

       9                 MR. SELF:  No objections.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  No objection.

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Show it done.

      12                 (Exhibit 1 marked for identification and

      13       admitted into the record.)

      14                 You may proceed.

      15                 MS. BROWN:  We also ask that Staff's

      16       Stipulated Nonconfidential Composite Exhibit be marked

      17       as Exhibit 2, Staff's Stipulated Confidential Composite

      18       Exhibit be marked as Exhibit 3, and the parties' and

      19       staff's Composite Deposition Exhibit be marked as

      20       Exhibit 4.

      21                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  That's marked for

      22       identification.

      23                 (Exhibits 2, 3, and 4 marked for

      24       identification.)

      25                 MS. BROWN:  We ask that those stipulated
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       1       exhibits be moved into the record at this time.

       2                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Is there any objection of

       3       the parties?  Mr. Butler?

       4                 MR. BUTLER:  No objection.

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self?

       6                 MR. SELF:  No objection.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it

       8       done.

       9                 (Exhibits 1, 2, 3, and 4 admitted into the

      10       record.)

      11                 You may proceed.

      12                 MS. BROWN:  All other exhibits on the exhibit

      13       list should be marked as indicated and moved into the

      14       record after each witness has testified.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Any preliminary

      16       matters before we proceed to opening statements?

      17                 MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman?

      18                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler, you're

      19       recognized.

      20                 MR. BUTLER:  Very briefly.  Just I would note

      21       the -- FPL filed on Thursday of last week a notice of

      22       amended position on Issues 14 and 15.  It was after the

      23       Prehearing Order had been issued, so the Prehearing

      24       Order doesn't reflect those changed positions.

      25                 Ms. Brown, do they have copies in their
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       1       materials?  We can certainly provide copies to the

       2       Commissioners, if it's appropriate.  But I just wanted

       3       to be sure that you were aware that we had filed that

       4       change of position on Issues 14 and 15.

       5                 MS. BROWN:  Why don't you pass out the

       6       position.  I'm afraid that I dropped the ball on that.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  No problem.  We'll

       8       get it done.

       9                 Make sure you leave one for Commissioner

      10       Argenziano as well.

      11                 Mr. Self, do you have this?

      12                 MR. SELF:  Yes, sir.

      13                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Mr. Butler, you may

      14       proceed.

      15                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.  There are -- I don't

      16       have any further preliminary matters.

      17                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  So this will be added

      18       on to our list of issues.  Anything -- Mr. Self, any,

      19       any preliminary matters before we proceed?

      20                 MR. SELF:  The only thing, Mr. Chairman, which

      21       I don't think is going to be an issue, is one of our

      22       witnesses is flying in this morning.  I doubt we'll get

      23       to him this morning.  But just in case, you know how

      24       weather and planes can be, in case he's delayed.

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, I do.  That will be
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       1       fine.

       2                 Okay.  Staff or the parties, any other

       3       preliminary matters before we proceed to opening

       4       statements?

       5                 MS. BROWN:  Not that I'm aware of, Mr.

       6       Chairman.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Hang on a second.

       8       Mr. Butler is trying to get your attention there.

       9                 MS. BROWN:  I don't think there are any

      10       further preliminary matters.

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.

      12                 MS. BROWN:  And I guess we're ready for

      13       opening statements, and the Prehearing Order states that

      14       parties may have up to ten minutes a side for opening

      15       statements.

      16                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Let's proceed.

      17                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.  Good morning, Mr.

      18       Chairman and Commissioners.

      19                 FPL is seeking an affirmative determination of

      20       need for the Florida EnergySecure line, a 280-mile

      21       intrastate natural gas pipeline that will initially

      22       serve the needs of FPL's highly efficient modernized

      23       combined cycle plants at Cape Canaveral and Riviera

      24       Beach, and ultimately will serve FPL's growing gas

      25       requirements for decades to come.
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       1                 FPL decided to proceed with the EnergySecure

       2       line only after a detailed analysis showed that it is

       3       the most economic alternative, yet the benefits go well

       4       beyond economics.  The EnergySecure line captures a

       5       once-in-a-generation opportunity where there is

       6       sufficient natural gas transportation requirements to

       7       economically justify construction of a new

       8       geographically separate pipeline in Florida.

       9                 Natural gas supplies are primarily delivered

      10       into Florida by two major interstate pipeline systems:

      11       Florida Gas Transmission and Gulfstream Natural Gas.  As

      12       a third uniquely routed major pipeline in the state, the

      13       EnergySecure line will increase the deliverability of

      14       natural gas, enhance competition for both natural gas

      15       transportation and gas supply into Florida, provide FPL

      16       with access to additional sources of natural gas,

      17       improve the reliability of gas deliveries into Florida

      18       by reducing vulnerability to disruptions on the existing

      19       pipeline systems, and provide significant investment and

      20       economic activity in the numerous counties and the state

      21       as a whole.

      22                 There is a clear and unavoidable need for the

      23       additional gas transportation capacity that the

      24       EnergySecure line will provide.  FPL is an industry

      25       leader in demand-side management and is actively
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       1       cultivating and pursuing additional renewable

       2       generation.  These efforts by themselves, however, are

       3       not enough.  FPL must continue building large baseload

       4       capacity additions, which will result in over

       5       1.6 billion cubic feet per day of incremental natural

       6       gas needs by 2030, almost double FPL's current needs.

       7                 The existing natural gas transmission capacity

       8       in Florida is inadequate to meet those incremental

       9       needs.  Moreover, continuing to increase FPL's reliance

      10       on Gulf area pipelines and gas supplies would not be in

      11       the best interest of FPL, its customers or the State of

      12       Florida.

      13                 FPL conducted a solicitation that sought

      14       proposals from a wide range of major players in the gas

      15       pipeline industry, excuse me, asking them to think

      16       creatively about how best to meet FPL's gas

      17       requirements.  FPL specifically requested that all

      18       participants include a proposal that would provide

      19       access to natural gas supplies at Transco Station 85

      20       with gas sourced out of the Midcontinent, giving access

      21       to new and growing unconventional sources of supply.

      22                 FPL received and evaluated more than

      23       60 proposals.  As a result of its evaluation, FPL

      24       determined that the EnergySecure line, in conjunction

      25       with an interstate pipeline that would be built and
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       1       operated by what we have called Company E for

       2       confidentiality purposes, is the most cost-effective

       3       alternative available for transporting clean natural gas

       4       to meet FPL's planned needs and provide the greatest

       5       supply diversity and reliability.

       6                 The EnergySecure line and Company E pipeline

       7       are sized to provide an initial capacity of

       8       600 million cubic feet per day, which is the smallest

       9       initial capacity that is cost-effective for a new

      10       pipeline into Florida.  The incremental cost of building

      11       the EnergySecure line at an initial capacity of

      12       600 million cubic feet per day instead of 400

      13       million cubic feet per day is only $15 million.

      14                 About two-thirds of this initial capacity will

      15       be used by FPL's Cape Canaveral and Riviera Beach

      16       plants, where the modernized facilities will reduce

      17       emissions by utilizing natural gas instead of fuel oil.

      18       The additional one-third of the initial capacity will

      19       also be utilized in FPL's system, as it will be FPL's

      20       most cost-efficient pipeline capacity and likely will

      21       displace contracted capacity on the FGT and/or

      22       Gulfstream pipelines.

      23                 When FPL's needs exceed 600 million cubic feet

      24       per day initial capacity of the EnergySecure line, the

      25       line can be expanded at low cost by adding compression
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       1       up to an ultimate capacity of approximately 1.25 billion

       2       cubic feet per day.

       3                 FPL's economic analysis shows that the

       4       combination of the EnergySecure line and Company E

       5       pipeline is the most cost-effective way to meet FPL's

       6       gas requirements under a wide range of scenarios.  It is

       7       important to recognize that all of those scenarios

       8       include booking and recovering the full cost of the

       9       EnergySecure line as electric plant-in-service from the

      10       day the line goes into service in 2014.

      11                 However, FPL will offer the temporary excess

      12       capacity on the EnergySecure line to other shippers in

      13       Florida, either directly via an electronic bulletin

      14       board or by releasing some of FPL's capacity commitments

      15       on existing pipelines.  All revenues from these

      16       short-term capacity sales will be returned to FPL's

      17       customers through the fuel clause, which will help

      18       defray the cost of the EnergySecure line to customers,

      19       making it even more cost-effective than we have modeled

      20       for the purposes of this proceeding and thus

      21       substantially increasing the line's economic advantage

      22       over the alternatives.

      23                 Of course, even if the economics were neutral,

      24       the other benefits of the EnergySecure line, supply

      25       diversity, reliability, et cetera, would still make it
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       1       the clear choice for meeting FPL's growing natural gas

       2       needs.

       3                 Recovery of the EnergySecure line costs

       4       through electric base rates is appropriate.  It's

       5       consistent with the Uniform System of Accounts and it's

       6       essential to FPL's decision to move forward with this

       7       project.  FPL is building the EnergySecure line for one

       8       purpose and one purpose only:  To meet the gas

       9       requirements of its electric power plants.  As such, the

      10       EnergySecure line is no different than other supporting

      11       equipment that is required to operate those plants, all

      12       of which FPL recovers through electric rates.

      13                 The fact that the capacity of the line

      14       initially exceeds FPL's needs does not change that

      15       conclusion.  FPL and other investor-owned utilities

      16       often build power plants whose capacity initially

      17       exceeds their reliability requirements because it is

      18       ultimately more cost-effective to build a larger plant

      19       than it would be to size the plant only for immediate

      20       capacity requirements.

      21                 The initial excess capacity from such plants

      22       is also often marketed to wholesale purchasers in order

      23       to help bring down the cost of the utility's retail

      24       customers.  FPL is doing the exact same thing with the

      25       EnergySecure line and should recover its costs in the
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       1       same manner.

       2                 The EnergySecure line will promote healthy

       3       competition in a market that currently only has two

       4       major pipelines, FGT and Gulfstream.  This new pipeline

       5       will give FPL valuable negotiating leverage.  In fact,

       6       just the prospect of building the EnergySecure line has

       7       already created a competitive dynamic.  FGT has steadily

       8       reduced the price of its proposal once it became evident

       9       that FPL was seriously considering building an

      10       interstate -- or intrastate pipeline as the most

      11       cost-effective alternative.  While FGT may assert that

      12       its price adjustments were related solely to market

      13       conditions, it is hard to believe that FGT would have

      14       lowered its prices in the absence of competitive

      15       pressures to do so.

      16                 Now as a disappointed bidder, FGT has

      17       criticized FPL's decision to proceed with the

      18       EnergySecure line on several grounds, none of them

      19       valid.  I will briefly address FGT's principal

      20       criticisms.

      21                 FGT complains that FPL did not evaluate its

      22       best proposal against the EnergySecure line.  In fact,

      23       FPL has evaluated FGT's latest updated proposal and

      24       found the EnergySecure line to be more advantageous to

      25       FPL's customers by between 115 and $400 million.  FGT
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       1       also complained that it did not have the opportunity to

       2       use an existing FPL 18-inch pipeline connected -- to

       3       connect to the Riviera plant, as FPL intends to do for

       4       the EnergySecure line.

       5                 This is disingenuous, because FPL -- or FGT

       6       has known of the 18-inch pipeline for years and could

       7       have easily asked FPL for permission to use it.  Nothing

       8       in the solicitation process would have precluded FGT

       9       from such an approach.  In any event, FPL reanalyzed

      10       FGT's proposal using the 18-inch pipeline and found that

      11       the EnergySecure line is still the most economic and

      12       best choice for FPL's customers.

      13                 FGT next suggests that FPL would be better off

      14       accessing Midcontinent shale gas and other non-Gulf

      15       sources by interconnecting with the Perryville Station

      16       through the Southeast Supply Header, or SESH, rather

      17       than at Station 85.  FGT misses the point by trying to

      18       make this an either/or choice.  FPL recognizes value in

      19       Perryville and already relies on it heavily by virtue of

      20       its current SESH capacity.

      21                 However, the EnergySecure line's

      22       interconnection to Station 85 not only provides access

      23       to Station 85, but also provides additional access to

      24       Perryville through Company E's pipeline network.

      25       Furthermore, if FGT were to access onshore supplies via
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       1       Perryville rather than Station 85, as FPL requested, the

       2       economic advantage of the EnergySecure line would

       3       actually improve by more than $100 million due to the

       4       cost of additional capacity that would be required on

       5       SESH.

       6                 In short, moving FGT's delivery point to

       7       Perryville would serve only to add costs to FGT's

       8       project and deprive FPL and its customers of important

       9       supply diversity.

      10                 FGT criticizes the gas forecasts that FPL used

      11       in its economic analyses, while offering no alternative

      12       of its own, excuse me, despite being directly asked by

      13       staff to do so.  FPL uses a consistent methodology to

      14       forecast fuel prices and utilizes reputable

      15       well-established organizations for inputs.

      16                 FGT argues that FPL's long-term gas prices

      17       should be higher because gas supplies could become

      18       scarcer.  However, given the significant technology

      19       advances in horizontal drilling, the proliferation of

      20       unconventional gas supplies throughout North America and

      21       the number of LNG terminals being developed around the

      22       country, there is ample reason to expect that gas

      23       supplies will remain plentiful.

      24                 In any event, the results of FPL's economic

      25       analysis would not materially change due to differences
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       1       in gas prices.  A 10 percent increase in natural gas

       2       prices would change the cost differential between the

       3       EnergySecure line and the FGT alternative by only about

       4       $5 million.  And here's the kicker.  Using high gas

       5       prices, as FGT suggests, would actually increase the

       6       economic advantage of the EnergySecure line.

       7                 Finally, FGT argues that the load forecast

       8       used in FPL's economic analysis is too high, again

       9       without offering a viable alternative.  FPL's long-term

      10       load forecast is reasonable and consistent with what FPL

      11       has used in other recent filings, including the 2009

      12       Ten-Year Site Plan.  It is based on the University of

      13       Florida's population forecast, adjusted to take into

      14       account UF's consistent trend of under forecasting.  And

      15       FPL's adjustment was very conservative, less than the

      16       five-year average of UF's under forecast.  Even as

      17       modestly adjusted, FPL's forecast remains within the

      18       band of UF's current long-term forecast.  FGT is simply

      19       wrong to suggest that FPL's load forecast is

      20       unreasonable.

      21                 In conclusion, the EnergySecure line will

      22       provide reliable, diverse gas supply for Florida's power

      23       plants at the lowest overall cost to FPL customers.

      24       Nothing raised by FGT meaningfully calls that conclusion

      25       into question.  The Commission should grant an
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       1       affirmative determination of need for the EnergySecure

       2       line and determine that the project is properly booked

       3       and treated as electric plant for all purposes under

       4       Chapter 366.

       5                 Thank you.

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Mr. Butler.

       7                 Mr. Self, you're recognized.

       8                 MR. SELF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Good

       9       morning, Commissioners.

      10                 There's really only one thing you need to

      11       remember about this case, and that is that FPL will not

      12       build this 300-mile-long pipeline unless you agree to

      13       put the entire $1.6 billion cost into the electric rate

      14       base.  What this tells you is that notwithstanding

      15       everything FPL may say about the demand projections and

      16       the importance of this particular pipeline, this

      17       pipeline is really not in the best interest of its

      18       customers.

      19                 Approving this pipeline as proposed and

      20       placing it in the electric rate base will impose

      21       50 percent more cost on FPL's customers through at least

      22       2020.  Moreover, under FPL's preferred analysis, which

      23       is seriously flawed, shows that the total end to end

      24       pipeline does not become cost-effective until at least

      25       2041, and you will hear how it may -- how it will never
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       1       be more cost-effective than the FPL proposal.

       2                 Let me just take a couple of minutes to kind

       3       of outline some of the more serious consumer problems

       4       with this multi-billion-dollar proposal.

       5                 First, it's undisputed that the actual

       6       approved demand for natural gas transportation is

       7       substantially less than what FPL wants to build.  You

       8       will hear that FPL needs a total of only

       9       400 million cubic feet of natural gas transportation to

      10       serve the Cape Canaveral and Riviera Beach plants.

      11       However, FPL's pipeline is designed to deliver 1.25

      12       billion cubic feet of gas, although initially it will

      13       only provide 600 million cubic feet, or about 50 percent

      14       more than what's needed through at least 2020.  To

      15       justify this excess 200 million, FPL spins off several

      16       options, none of which are viable or economic for

      17       consumers.

      18                 FPL cannot sell excess capacity off its

      19       pipeline because the pipeline is only going to be

      20       connected to three FPL plants.  FPL will tell you that

      21       it will release other gas transportation, but releasing

      22       excess capacity does not help customers because the gas

      23       being released is substantially cheaper than the cost

      24       that FPL will incur to transport gas over its own

      25       pipeline.
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       1                 The other aspect of the demand analysis is the

       2       claim that this pipeline needs to be built now in order

       3       to serve FPL customers for the next 40 years.  It's

       4       undisputed that Florida's population growth is flat and

       5       that FPL is actually a net customer loss situation

       6       today.  Nevertheless, FPL has unilaterally adjusted its

       7       forecast upward beginning in 2012 to justify new

       8       gas-fired electric plants.

       9                 But even if FPL does experience the big bounce

      10       up in population in 2012 as they're assuming, under

      11       FPL's own forecasts FPL is still not going to need any

      12       new gas generation plant or pipelines to serve such

      13       plants until at least 2021.  The bottom line is that FPL

      14       is asking you to certify a need for the next 30 years.

      15                 Now you would not certify a need for a power

      16       plant that far out and make customers pay for it now,

      17       and you certainly should not certify and make customers

      18       pay for such transportation decades in advance either.

      19                 The second key issue in this case is whether

      20       this is the right pipeline to meet future demand.  Since

      21       even FPL acknowledges that its pipeline is too big

      22       through at least 2020, FPL attempts to justify the

      23       $1.6 billion price tag, which, by the way, the pipeline

      24       by itself cannot deliver one drop of gas, because

      25       they're telling you that they're going to connect this
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       1       pipeline to a new upstream interstate pipeline.

       2                 Now the problem is the only way Company E can

       3       build the interstate pipeline is by FPL agreeing to pay

       4       for 600 million cubic feet of capacity per day, which,

       5       as we've discussed, is already 50 percent more than what

       6       it actually needs.

       7                 Now in an attempt to make the whole deal more

       8       attractive, FPL strings together a convoluted analysis

       9       of natural gas supplies to make you think you're getting

      10       something that is otherwise not available from the

      11       incumbent pipeline systems.  Cutting through, cutting

      12       through the clutter of Transco Station 85 versus

      13       Citronelle, here's what you need to know.  The

      14       originating points of the Company E pipeline and the FGT

      15       pipeline are less than 80 miles apart, and both have

      16       access to the same diverse sources of natural gas

      17       supply, including shale gas.

      18                 So fundamentally the real question is which

      19       pipeline is more effective for customers?  Again, by

      20       FPL's own admission, FGT provided the lowest overall

      21       cost alternative to supply the 400 million cubic feet

      22       that is actually needed and which has been certified by

      23       you, and which is all that's needed through at least

      24       2020.

      25                 Now the third main issue in this case is the
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       1       rate base question and whether FPL's pipeline, if

       2       approved, would be subject to Chapter 368, which is the

       3       pipeline regulatory statute.

       4                 To say that what FPL is asking for is

       5       unprecedented does not begin to describe what FPL is

       6       seeking from you.  From all the evidence there is not a

       7       single regulatory body in the United States that has

       8       ever approved a 300-mile natural gas transportation

       9       pipeline as a part of an electric utility's rate base.

      10       You cannot and should not be the first.  There is no

      11       legal, regulatory, economic or public policy reason for

      12       you to put a natural gas transportation pipeline in an

      13       electric plant rate base.

      14                 In fact, these types of fuel transportation

      15       systems have historically been in separate corporate

      16       affiliates, and there are a number of Florida electric

      17       utilities which have supplied their fuel through

      18       separate affiliate transportation entities.  And with

      19       the pipeline in a separate corporate entity if otherwise

      20       approved, then it would clearly meet the definition of a

      21       natural gas transportation company as set forth by the

      22       Legislature in Chapter 368.

      23                 In the final analysis, this is not a

      24       once-in-a-lifetime opportunity.  During a time of

      25       unprecedented growth in Florida, the gas transportation
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       1       needs of FPL's customers have been reasonably, reliably

       2       and economically met with incremental additions to the

       3       natural gas transportation systems.  These large-scale

       4       redundant systems will continue to evolve and grow to

       5       meet the future transportation needs of Florida.

       6                 FPL has admitted that the new gas generation

       7       plants can be built in three to five years and that new

       8       gas transportation facilities can also be built in three

       9       to five years.  So even if FPL's forecast proved true in

      10       the coming decades -- and there's way too many ifs in

      11       those forecasts -- but even if FPL is right, there is an

      12       opportunity each and every year for the decades to come

      13       to reasonably and efficiently build natural gas

      14       transportation to serve the power plants that may in the

      15       future be authorized.

      16                 This Commission has never approved decades'

      17       worth of capacity years in advance on the basis of a

      18       utility's own economic analysis that takes 30 years to

      19       become cost-effective, and there's no reason to do so

      20       now.

      21                 You should not commit the consumers of Florida

      22       to an excessive, overbuilt, unnecessary $1.6 billion

      23       pipeline, plus the secret costs of the additional

      24       interstate pipeline, especially when there is a

      25       significantly less costly alternative.  More
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       1       importantly, you should not add insult to injury by

       2       rolling the $1.6 billion cost into the electric rate

       3       base.  Make the best choice for consumers and reject the

       4       certificate of need that FPL is seeking.

       5                 Thank you.

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Mr. Self.  Aside

       7       from your witness who is flying in, are all of the other

       8       witnesses in the, in the room?

       9                 Would you have all the witnesses stand,

      10       please, so we can swear you in.

      11                 MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman, just I would note,

      12       I don't think we have all of our witnesses here.

      13       Certainly we can swear in the ones who are here, but I

      14       don't believe all of them are --

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Just remember, as we

      16       get to those witnesses, if they have not been sworn in,

      17       I'm going to hold the lawyers responsible for bringing

      18       that to the, to the bench's attention.

      19                 (Witnesses collectively sworn.)

      20                 Thank you.  You may be seated.

      21                 Call your first witness.

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  FPL

      23       would call Mr. Sam Forrest.

      24                             SAM FORREST

      25       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power &
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       1       Light Company and, having been duly sworn, testified as

       2       follows:

       3                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

       4       BY MR. BUTLER:

       5            Q.   Mr. Forrest, have you been sworn?

       6            A.   I have.

       7            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Would you please state your

       8       name and address for the record?

       9            A.   Yes.  Sam Forrest.  Business address is

      10       700 Universe Boulevard in Juno Beach, Florida, 33408.

      11            Q.   Thank you.  Thank you.  By whom are you

      12       employed and in what capacity?

      13            A.   I am Vice President of the Energy Marketing

      14       and Trading Business Unit of Florida Power & Light.

      15            Q.   Have you prepared and caused to be filed 26

      16       pages of prefiled direct testimony with attached Exhibit

      17       SF-1 and seven pages of prefiled supplemental testimony

      18       in this proceeding?

      19            A.   I have.

      20            Q.   Did you also prepare and cause to be filed

      21       errata to your testimony on July 24, 2009?

      22            A.   Yes.

      23            Q.   Okay.  Do you have any further changes or

      24       revisions to your prefiled direct or supplemental

      25       testimony?

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        30

       1            A.   No, I do not.

       2            Q.   Okay.  With those changes, if I asked you the

       3       same questions contained in your direct and supplemental

       4       testimony, would your answers be the same today?

       5            A.   Yes, they would.

       6                 MR. BUTLER:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, I'd ask that

       7       Mr. Forrest's direct and supplemental testimony be

       8       inserted into the record as though read.

       9                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of

      10       the witness will be inserted into the record as though

      11       read.

      12                 MR. BUTLER:  I would also note that

      13       Mr. Forrest's Exhibit SF-1 has been identified as

      14       Exhibit 5 on Staff's Comprehensive Exhibit list.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  For the record for

      16       identification, Exhibit Number 5.

      17                 (Exhibit 5 marked for identification.)

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  You may proceed.

       2                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

       3       BY MR. BUTLER:

       4            Q.   Mr. Forrest, would you please summarize your

       5       direct and supplemental testimony?

       6            A.   Yes.

       7                 Chairman Carter, Commissioners, good morning.

       8       Thank you for the opportunity to address you today.

       9                 The purpose of my direct and supplemental

      10       testimony is to provide an overview of FPL's request for

      11       an affirmative determination of need for the Florida

      12       EnergySecure line.  This request is as much about the

      13       future of gas supply in Florida as it is for the

      14       immediate need to supply gas to the modernizations at

      15       Cape Canaveral and Riviera Beach.

      16                 FPL's goal is provide clean energy service at

      17       an affordable price to its customers while ensuring the

      18       highest level of reliability.  FPL believes the proposed

      19       intrastate natural gas pipeline helps meet this goal by

      20       increasing the reliability of the natural gas

      21       infrastructure in Florida, by continuing to diversify

      22       sources and physical location of gas supply, and through

      23       the potential to expand this new resource to meet future

      24       natural gas needs.

      25                 The modernizations of FPL's Cape Canaveral and
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       1       Riviera plants will result in new natural gas generating

       2       facilities that require approximately 400 million cubic

       3       feet of natural gas per day.  FPL does not currently

       4       have enough firm gas transportation capacity under

       5       contract to meet this increased need in addition to its

       6       already substantial gas transportation requirements.

       7                 FPL is already very dependent on natural gas

       8       as a fuel source.  By 2011 it is projected that natural

       9       gas-fired generation will supply over 60 percent of

      10       FPL's energy needs, all being directly supplied by the

      11       two incumbent pipelines, FGT and Gulfstream.  FPL will

      12       have roughly 1.3 billion cubic feet of firm

      13       transportation service on FGT once their Phase 8

      14       expansion is complete in 2011.  Gulfstream will supply

      15       an additional $700 million cubic feet of FPL's daily gas

      16       load.  Together this is almost 2 billion cubic feet per

      17       day, which on a peak day at maximum flow will serve

      18       approximately 3 million FPL customers, all relying on

      19       two pipelines whose available gas transportation

      20       capacity is almost fully subscribed.

      21                 By facilitating the introduction of a third

      22       major pipeline into and within Florida and offering a

      23       uniquely routed pipeline that has the potential to be

      24       connected at multiple points with the existing gas

      25       infrastructure of the state, the Florida EnergySecure

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        67

       1       line will increase the reliability of gas delivery

       2       within Florida.

       3                 FPL conducted a comprehensive pipeline

       4       solicitation aimed at increasing access to onshore

       5       supply basins while adding to the reliability of the

       6       natural gas delivery system.  Through this solicitation

       7       process FPL determined that a self-built alternative,

       8       the Florida EnergySecure line, when combined with the

       9       proposal from Company E is the most strategic and

      10       cost-effective solution available to meet the natural

      11       gas demands of the modernization projects, as well as

      12       having the overall effect of strengthening Florida's

      13       natural gas infrastructure and positioning it to meet

      14       future natural gas transportation needs.

      15                 Understand this is not a core business

      16       strategy for FPL, but rather a unique situation where a

      17       self-built project provides the most benefits over the

      18       long term.  The combined proposals of the Florida

      19       EnergySecure line with upstream transportation service

      20       provided by Company E offered the reliability and

      21       diversity of supply benefits FPL sought, while improving

      22       competition in Florida for the supply and transportation

      23       of natural gas.  The combined proposals also offer the

      24       greatest economic benefit for FPL's customers, with well

      25       over $100 million in savings when compared to the next
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       1       closest alternative.

       2                 While the proposed pipeline into Florida would

       3       be largely supplied from unconventional shale gas

       4       production in Texas, Arkansas, Oklahoma and Louisiana,

       5       the addition of the upstream pipeline would also provide

       6       access to liquified natural gas and traditional Gulf

       7       Coast supply through a large existing pipeline

       8       infrastructure.  Having access to several supply basins,

       9       which the upstream pipeline offers, protects against

      10       declining production in a given supply basin.

      11                 FPL has proposed the Florida EnergySecure line

      12       as an electric utility rate based asset, as the purpose

      13       of this pipeline is to serve FPL's electric generation

      14       fleet.  However, FPL is committed to ensuring any

      15       temporary excess pipeline capacity available on FPL's

      16       system as a result of the installation of the Florida

      17       EnergySecure line will be offered to other entities in

      18       the state in an open and nondiscriminatory basis.

      19                 Any revenues resulting from sales off of the

      20       new line from capacity releases on FGT or Gulfstream

      21       will flow back to FPL's customers through the fuel cost

      22       recovery clause.  It is important to note, however, that

      23       FPL's proposed pipeline is the most cost-effective

      24       solution for its customers, irrespective of whether FPL

      25       makes any sales of excess capacity to third parties.
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       1       Any such sales will only serve to improve the economics

       2       of the pipeline for FPL's customers.

       3                 There is not a viable do-nothing alternative

       4       in this case.  The need for additional gas at the

       5       modernization projects dictates significant pipeline

       6       infrastructure must be added, whether it is through new

       7       infrastructure such as the Florida EnergySecure line or

       8       a substantial upgrade of the existing pipelines.

       9                 FPL believes the Florida EnergySecure line is

      10       the best proposal for our customers to meet this

      11       incremental need and also meet the strategic benefits of

      12       fuel reliability and diversity.  Thank you.

      13                 MR. BUTLER:  I would tender the witness for

      14       cross-examination.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Just before you go,

      16       Mr. Self, hang -- just hold on for a second.

      17                 Staff, when we finish with this witness, I'll

      18       come back to you for Witness Collins.  Okay?  I'll come

      19       back to you.

      20                 MS. BROWN:  Actually, Mr. Chairman, Witness

      21       Collins has not been excused.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Then I don't have to

      23       worry about it then.

      24                 MS. BROWN:  All right.

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self, you may proceed.
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       1                 MR. SELF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Before I

       2       start, Mr. Chairman, with your permission, we have a

       3       confidential document that is, I believe, part of the

       4       stipulated Exhibit Number 2 or 3.

       5                 If I can just ask staff counsel for a moment,

       6       I don't see on the list that all of the confidential

       7       interrogatory responses are listed there on Page 4 of

       8       your document, but certainly with respect to the

       9       enumeration of the responses it otherwise falls within

      10       that.

      11                 MS. BROWN:  Mr. Self, turn to Page 6 of the

      12       exhibit list.

      13                 MR. SELF:  Right.

      14                 MS. BROWN:  Where we have the confidential

      15       composite exhibit.  And are you telling me that these

      16       are not listed there?

      17                 MR. SELF:  Yes.  Like the one I'm going to

      18       look at is FPL's response to FGT's first set of

      19       interrogatories, Interrogatory Number 20.

      20                 MS. BROWN:  All right.  Well, I think probably

      21       the best thing to do in this instance is to introduce

      22       them at the time as you're crossing Mr. Forrest.

      23                 MR. SELF:  Okay.  Thank you.

      24                 With that, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to pass out

      25       this confidential --
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       1                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  You may proceed.

       2                 MR. SELF:  So, Martha, we want to give this a

       3       number; is that what you're telling me?

       4                 MS. BROWN:  Yes.

       5                 MR. SELF:  Okay.

       6                 MS. BROWN:  Yes.  And --

       7                 MR. SELF:  Mr. Chairman, could we get the next

       8       number, please?

       9                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Let's kind of turn on

      10       over to the --

      11                 MS. BROWN:  That's Number 95.

      12                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Hang on a sec.

      13                 This will be marked for identification as

      14       Exhibit Number 95.  And you had a nice -- you said --

      15       what did you say, Mr. Self?  You said --

      16                 MR. SELF:  Yeah.  For the record, Mr.

      17       Chairman, this is FPL's response to FGT's first set of

      18       interrogatories, Interrogatory Number 20, which is

      19       confidential.

      20                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  How about we say

      21       Confidential Interrogatory Number 20?

      22                 MR. SELF:  That's great.

      23                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners, okay?

      24                 (Exhibit 95 marked for identification.)

      25                 MR. SELF:  I apologize for that confusion, Mr.
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       1       Chairman.

       2                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  That's okay.  That's all

       3       right.  I try to specialize in brevity.  You may

       4       proceed.

       5                 MR. SELF:  Thank you.

       6                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       7       BY MR. SELF:

       8            Q.   Good morning, Mr. Forrest.  Floyd Self

       9       representing FGT.

      10            A.   Good morning.

      11            Q.   You have before you, Mr. Forrest, a red folder

      12       with a document that FPL has identified as containing

      13       confidential information.  I want to ask you a couple of

      14       questions about that number, but I obviously do not want

      15       you to disclose the number.

      16            A.   Okay.

      17            Q.   Now the confidential information on this

      18       document is the projected total cost of the Company E

      19       proposed pipeline that will connect to the new FPL

      20       intrastate pipeline; is that correct?

      21            A.   That is correct.

      22            Q.   So this cost would be in addition to the

      23       approximately $1.6 billion cost of FPL's proposed

      24       pipeline; correct?

      25            A.   That is correct.  I would say that the
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       1       $1.6 billion has been lowered with our -- I believe when

       2       we filed our rebuttal testimony we also provided new

       3       economics.  This number has been lowered as well with

       4       that same, that same update.  But, but you are correct

       5       in terms of this is in addition to.

       6            Q.   Okay.  When you combined these two costs, and,

       7       again, please don't verbally say what that total is,

       8       it's FPL's position that the expenditure of this total

       9       amount of money is in the long run cheaper for

      10       ratepayers than the $1 billion pipeline proposed by FGT;

      11       is that correct?

      12            A.   That is correct, yes.

      13            Q.   Now part of the reason FPL contends that the

      14       multi-billion-dollar cost for ratepayers is better for

      15       ratepayers is because the pipeline is physically

      16       designed to ultimately carry 1.25 billion feet of gas;

      17       is that correct?

      18            A.   Well, that's what allows, I guess, fairly

      19       inexpensive, as is mentioned in our -- in numerous

      20       testimonies that have been provided by FPL, I guess what

      21       we describe as inexpensive expansions of the system.

      22       They are, you know, as, as the -- once the initial

      23       infrastructure has been added, adding additional

      24       infrastructure to increase the capacity of the pipeline

      25       come at a very reduced cost to that initial installation
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       1       cost.

       2            Q.   Does the FGT proposed pipeline have the same

       3       basic specification as the combined FPL Company E

       4       pipeline?  And by that I mean specifically does the FGT

       5       pipeline initially deliver 600 million cubic feet that

       6       could then be upgraded to 1.25 billion feet?

       7            A.   Which pipeline was that?

       8            Q.   FGT.

       9            A.   FGT's proposal was for 400 million cubic feet

      10       a day.

      11            Q.   And this basic design that you're proposing,

      12       the 600 million today upgradeable to 1.25 billion, the

      13       FGT proposal does not have those specifications because

      14       those exact specifications were not specifically

      15       solicited; isn't that true?

      16            A.   FPL Witness Stubblefield can go through the

      17       details of the solicitation process in much greater

      18       detail than I can.  But at a high level, we started off

      19       in early 2008 talking to a number of pipeline companies,

      20       sort of prequalifying folks for interest in their, you

      21       know, wanting us to deliver natural gas to, to the

      22       modernization project.  So we started off by talking to

      23       a number of companies.  And when we were doing that, it

      24       was during the, I guess the 2008 Ten-Year Site Plan was

      25       available, which had us projected to build a couple of
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       1       more combined cycle facilities after the modernizations

       2       but prior to the addition of Turkey Point 6 and 7 new

       3       nuclear.

       4                 So at that time we were talking about anywhere

       5       from 800 million cubic feet a day to 1.2 billion cubic

       6       feet a day of gas infrastructure required to support

       7       just our growth, not the state's growth, but just FPL's

       8       growth by about 2018 or so.  Subsequent to that

       9       obviously with the economy and with load projections

      10       lowering, we consistently updated each of the potential

      11       participants in this process to lower those needs.  We

      12       ourselves looked at a 400 a day solution, we looked at a

      13       600 million a day solution, and ultimately came upon the

      14       600 million a day solution as proposed.

      15                 MR. SELF:  Excuse me.  Mr. Chairman, I really

      16       don't think the witness's answer has at all been

      17       responsive to the question I asked.  First, I never

      18       heard him say yes or no.  And then he's describing the

      19       entire solicitation process.  I didn't ask him about

      20       that.  I merely asked him if, if this is what was bid,

      21       and it seems to me that's a yes or no kind of question.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Forrest, if you could

      23       answer yes or no, you may do so.

      24                 THE WITNESS:  Sure.

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  And then you'll be able to
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       1       explain your answer.  But it would be most helpful to --

       2                 THE WITNESS:  Can you ask, reask your

       3       question?

       4       BY MR. SELF:

       5            Q.   Sure.  Did the FGT proposal -- strike that.

       6                 The FGT proposal does not have the same

       7       specification, 600 million now, 1.25 billion later,

       8       because those specifications were not specifically bid,

       9       yes or no?

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry.  I'd ask for

      11       clarification.  You say they were not specifically bid.

      12       Do you mean did FPL specifically ask for them or did FGT

      13       specifically provide that in its response?

      14       BY MR. SELF:

      15            Q.   Did FPL specifically ask for a proposal

      16       for 600 -- a pipeline that would deliver 600 initially,

      17       that would be upgradeable to 1.25 billion?

      18            A.   No.  However, I will say that through the

      19       solicitation process -- and, again, Ms. Stubblefield

      20       will go through it in much greater detail -- we asked

      21       for everything from 400 million cubic feet a day all the

      22       way up to 1.2 billion cubic feet a day, and really

      23       everything kind of in between there.  We asked for what

      24       I'll describe as an -- the upstream pipeline section, so

      25       that's the interstate pipeline section, and it might
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       1       actually be helpful to go to the map here and show this.

       2                 It's already on.  Okay.

       3                 What I'll describe as the upstream section of

       4       this pipeline, from Transco Station 85 down to FGT

       5       Station 16, I'll describe this as the upstream portion

       6       of the pipeline.  Everything within the State of Florida

       7       from Station 16 down would be considered to be the

       8       downstream side of the proposal.  And then just from

       9       Transco Station 85 all the way down to the

      10       modernizations, we'll just describe that as the

      11       interstate solution.

      12                 So there were really three different requests

      13       that were made from counter-parties to make sure that

      14       we, we got the best and most complete proposals from

      15       everyone.

      16                 So specifically we didn't ask for at the, at

      17       the end of the day a 600 a day solution with the ability

      18       to grow up to 1.2 billion cubic feet.  But throughout

      19       this process, which again was probably, you know, I

      20       would describe it as maybe an eight- to ten-month

      21       process, everybody had an opportunity to propose

      22       anything from 400 million cubic feet a day all the way

      23       up to the full Bcf and beyond.

      24                 MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman?  I'm sorry.  Mr.,

      25       Mr. Forrest is referring to an exhibit that's to
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       1       Mr. Sexton's testimony, Exhibit TCS-9.  I don't know if

       2       you have copies of that available conveniently to you

       3       there.  But if you don't and would like a copy of what

       4       is blown up over here on the board, I'd be happy to

       5       distribute these.

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  If you have a portable copy,

       7       make sure you give one to Mr. Self, and we'd be more

       8       than happy to look at it.

       9                 MR. BUTLER:  Yes.  Thank you.

      10                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  I thought it was a map of

      11       Iraq for a moment there, the way you had it.

      12                 (Laughter.)

      13                 Mr. Self, you may proceed.

      14                 MR. SELF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Just for

      15       the record, Mr. Chairman, there are a number of

      16       witnesses that have different maps, which I'm assuming

      17       those witnesses may or may not get into based upon what

      18       the cross-examination is.

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  That'll be fine.  You may

      20       proceed.

      21                 MR. SELF:  Thank you.

      22       BY MR. SELF:

      23            Q.   Now, Mr. Forrest, the FGT proposal is only for

      24       400 million cubic feet a day of gas, which is what the

      25       Cape Canaveral and Riviera Beach modernization projects
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       1       combined will require; correct?

       2            A.   Correct.

       3            Q.   And in terms of existing or approved gas-fired

       4       electric plant, except for the Cape and Riviera plants,

       5       FPL already has under contract sufficient gas

       6       transportation to fuel those other power plants;

       7       correct?

       8            A.   Currently, yes.  And with the expansion of

       9       FGT's Phase 8 project, which will deliver an additional

      10       400,000 per day, that should be enough gas to supply all

      11       of our needs at that time, and that's 2011 time frame.

      12            Q.   So that covers all of your authorized power

      13       plants as of today; correct?

      14            A.   Correct.  Including West County 1, 2, and 3,

      15       which are in various stages of construction.  Correct.

      16            Q.   Okay.  Now in order to fuel the modernization

      17       programs for the Cape Canaveral and Riviera Beach

      18       plants, did FPL plan 20 years ago for the gas

      19       transportation capacity to serve those two plants?

      20            A.   Not that I'm aware of, no.

      21            Q.   Ten years ago?

      22            A.   Again, not that I'm aware of.  I've been with

      23       FPL for about two years, so.

      24            Q.   All right.  In fact, in your 2008 application

      25       for approval of those modernization proposals, didn't

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        80

       1       FPL indicate that it was still considering its options

       2       for gas transportation for those two plants?

       3            A.   That is correct.

       4            Q.   And if FPL's petition is approved in this

       5       docket, there will be sufficient time to build the

       6       transportation capacity to serve those two plants;

       7       correct?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   And, likewise, if the Commission denies your

      10       pipeline and FPL contracts with FGT to build the

      11       transportation capacity to serve those two plants, there

      12       is sufficient time to build that capacity on a timely

      13       basis as well; correct?

      14            A.   That is, that is my understanding.  Yes.

      15            Q.   Now once the Cape and Riviera plants come

      16       online in 2013 and 2014, FPL is not anticipating any new

      17       gas generating plant coming online until 2021; correct?

      18            A.   That is correct.  I believe that's the, that

      19       is in Witness Enjamio's original direct testimony.

      20       That's correct.

      21            Q.   All right.  And so FPL is going to have

      22       200 million cubic feet of excess gas available to it

      23       every day until that next new gas generating plant comes

      24       online in 2021; correct?

      25            A.   That is correct.  And that is built into the
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       1       economic analysis that demonstrates that on a life cycle

       2       basis the FPL proposal in combination with the Company E

       3       proposal is the most cost-effective proposal by over

       4       $100 million.  There is no, there is no credit given at

       5       all to that excess 200 during the initial years.

       6            Q.   So the point is you're paying for the

       7       200 million, and it's FPL's position that,

       8       notwithstanding the fact that you're buying

       9       200 million cubic feet of gas every day that you don't

      10       need, under FPL's position that's still more economic?

      11            A.   Yes, that is correct.  I think it might be

      12       helpful -- we filed a late-filed exhibit.  I guess it

      13       wasn't late-filed.  It was a response to a staff

      14       Interrogatory Number 145, which laid out the capital

      15       costs.  I'm not sure if we have that available to look

      16       at.

      17            Q.   Well, I'm not asking you about the capital

      18       costs at this time.

      19            A.   Well, I think it's important to understand how

      20       the capital costs work.  We were, we're talking about a

      21       400,000 a day pipeline versus a 600,000 a day pipeline,

      22       with, with maybe a misunderstanding that, you know, a

      23       400 a day pipeline is two-thirds of the capital cost of

      24       a, of a, of a 600 a day pipeline.  I think the exhibit

      25       itself, or the interrogatory response itself is fairly
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       1       telling in terms of how much a pipeline costs and how

       2       much it takes to add compression to that facility.

       3                 MR. SELF:  Well, but -- Mr. Chairman,

       4       obviously this witness has filed extensive testimony.

       5       There's extensive interrogatory responses.  I'd really

       6       like for him to just focus on the questions that are

       7       being asked, if I may, please.

       8                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Forrest, stay, try to

       9       stay focused.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry.

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler.

      12                 MR. BUTLER:  I do have to respond to

      13       Mr. Self's comment.  I think Mr. Forrest's answer is

      14       precisely focused.  He's trying to explain why building,

      15       you know, 600 MMcf per day instead of 400 MMcf per day

      16       initial capacity makes sense, which is exactly the line

      17       of questioning that Mr. Self is pursuing.  So the fact

      18       that it goes in a direction Mr. Self doesn't like is not

      19       something that makes it inappropriate testimony.

      20                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Not necessarily

      21       inappropriate testimony.  But if you kind of stay

      22       focused, that would be helpful.  Because I'm sure with

      23       the volume of exhibits and witnesses and their testimony

      24       here, we can get there.  So let's move forward.

      25                 Mr. Self, you're recognized.
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       1                 MR. SELF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       2       BY MR. SELF:

       3            Q.   Now a condition of Company E building the new

       4       upstream pipeline is that FPL must commit to taking

       5       600 million cubic feet a day of gas and paying the

       6       demand charge associated with that 600; correct?

       7            A.   That is correct.  As with any intra --

       8       interstate pipeline that was, that was offered into the

       9       solicitation process, for new infrastructure there was

      10       very little interest in the pipeline community offering

      11       400,000 a day into the, into the process.  That is

      12       correct.

      13            Q.   And just to be clear, the -- I think we've

      14       previously -- you indicated that the next gas generating

      15       plants come online in 2021; correct?

      16            A.   I believe that is correct.

      17            Q.   And those power plants have not been approved

      18       by this Commission yet; correct?

      19            A.   That's correct.

      20            Q.   Assuming all of FPL's forecasts are correct,

      21       when would you expect FPL to petition this Commission

      22       for a determination of need to construct, say, the plant

      23       that's supposed to be on, in service in 2021?

      24            A.   I would assume, you know, as with any power

      25       plant that we bring in front of this Commission,
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       1       probably, you know, three to five years prior to that,

       2       depending upon what the purpose of it is to serve and,

       3       and just exactly when the need is.  We'd be in there

       4       three to five years in advance of that.

       5            Q.   So that would be somewhere in the 2016 to 2019

       6       time frame?

       7            A.   Okay.

       8            Q.   And I understand that FPL -- under FPL's

       9       proposals and forecasts, the FPL pipeline will not

      10       require its first upgrade until 2023; correct?

      11            A.   Of -- I'm sorry.  Could you ask the question

      12       again?  I'm not sure which --

      13            Q.   Sure.  The first incremental upgrade to the

      14       FPL pipeline is not scheduled under your current

      15       forecast to occur until 2023; is that correct?

      16            A.   I'd have to see Mr. Enjamio's exhibit to know

      17       that for sure, but that sounds about right.  Yes.

      18            Q.   Okay.  I want to ask you a couple of sort of

      19       broad questions about your supplemental direct testimony

      20       for a moment, if I may.

      21                 My first question is how many affiliate

      22       companies does FPL have?

      23            A.   I don't know the answer to that question.

      24            Q.   Are there any that you're aware of?

      25            A.   Any affiliate companies of FPL?
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       1            Q.   Yes.

       2            A.   Yes.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And do you know whether FPL's regulated

       4       utility operation buys or sells goods or services to any

       5       of those affiliated companies?

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   And do you know how many affiliate companies

       8       there are in FPL Group?

       9            A.   No, I do not.

      10            Q.   But there are some?

      11            A.   Yes.

      12            Q.   And do you know how many of those affiliates

      13       FPL would buy or sell goods and services from?

      14            A.   No, I do not.

      15            Q.   You would certainly agree with me that one of

      16       the FPL witnesses in this proceeding is employed by FPL

      17       Group; correct?

      18            A.   That is correct.  Yes.

      19            Q.   All right.  At this time I'd like to turn

      20       specifically to your supplemental direct on Page 7, and

      21       specifically I want to talk about Lines 10 through 12.

      22            A.   Okay.

      23            Q.   Have you quantified the expenses associated

      24       with the legal, administrative and other expenses

      25       associated with having the pipeline in a separate
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       1       entity?

       2            A.   No, we have not.

       3            Q.   Now I'd like to kind of change gears for a

       4       moment here and ask you, are you familiar with a

       5       mechanism that was created in the stipulation to FPL's

       6       2005 rate case that allowed for generating plant to be

       7       automatically included in base rates, avoiding the need

       8       for a concurrent rate case?  And I think generically

       9       this is known as a generation base rate adjustment.

      10                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self, break it down.  I

      11       think you gave him like multiple questions, and we want

      12       to kind of break it down here.  Okay?

      13       BY MR. SELF:

      14            Q.   Let's try the end question first.  Are you

      15       familiar with something known as a generation base rate

      16       adjustment?

      17            A.   Generally, yes.

      18            Q.   Okay.  Do you recall when we took your

      19       deposition a couple of weeks ago -- well, maybe the

      20       easiest thing is do you have a copy of your deposition

      21       transcript with you?

      22            A.   I do not.  No.

      23            Q.   Does your counsel have a copy of your

      24       deposition transcript?

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler, do you have a
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       1       copy of his deposition?

       2                 MR. BUTLER:  A copy of Mr. Forrest's

       3       deposition?

       4                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, sir.

       5                 MR. BUTLER:  Yes.

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, sir.  Let's do this.

       7       Let's do this, Commissioners.  Let me give you a stretch

       8       break and give Linda an opportunity to update her

       9       communication system there.  Let's, let's take five.

      10       We'll be back at ten of.  Thank you.

      11                 (Recess taken.)

      12                 Okay.  We are back on the record.

      13                 Mr. Self, you're recognized.

      14                 MR. SELF:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I

      15       appreciate that.

      16       BY MR. SELF:

      17            Q.   Mr. Forrest, I believe now you have a copy of

      18       your deposition --

      19            A.   Yes, I do.

      20            Q.   -- transcript.  And we're looking at Page 54,

      21       down at the bottom of that page.  I asked you a question

      22       about whether you would file a rate case to recover the

      23       costs of the intrastate pipeline.  Could you please read

      24       your answer at Lines 22 to 24 there?

      25            A.   Yes.
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       1                 "The latter.  We would file a rate case at the

       2       time or whatever the appropriate mechanism is at that

       3       time, but not until it goes into service."

       4            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Would the generation rate

       5       base adjustment be one of the mechanisms at that time

       6       that you're contemplating for recovering the costs of

       7       this pipeline?

       8            A.   No, not that I'm aware of.  No.

       9            Q.   But it certainly is your intent to have the

      10       pipeline classified as electric utility plant; correct?

      11            A.   That is correct.

      12            Q.   So what other mechanisms might you be

      13       contemplating, if you know of any?

      14            A.   I don't have any other mechanism in mind.  I'm

      15       not sure what comes out of our existing rate case or

      16       anything else.  The primary -- or actually as it is

      17       currently designed, the sole, I believe, mechanism

      18       available to us would be a rate case.

      19            Q.   Okay.  If the Commission finds that there's

      20       sufficient demand for a new pipeline, would that be a

      21       good result for FPL?

      22            A.   I'm not sure I understand the question.

      23            Q.   Well, if the Commission makes an affirmative

      24       finding that there is sufficient demand to build a new

      25       pipeline, would that be a good result for FPL?
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       1            A.   Well, I think it would be a good result for

       2       FPL's customers.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And if the Commission determined that

       4       FPL's pipeline as proposed and the Company E pipeline

       5       was the best way to serve that demand, that would be a

       6       good result as well, would it?

       7            A.   Again, yes, for FPL's customers, absolutely.

       8            Q.   All right.  But a finding that the pipeline

       9       should be in a separate corporate entity and that all of

      10       the costs of building, maintaining and operating that

      11       pipeline should be in a separate entity, if that finding

      12       is made, FPL will not build the pipeline; correct?

      13            A.   That is what we have said, yes, that is

      14       correct.  We believe we have an obligation to provide

      15       reliable service, reliable electric service to our

      16       customers.  In meeting that obligation, we, we have to

      17       study long-term investments on any, any asset, whether

      18       that be a, a generator or a pipeline or a transmission

      19       line.  And when we make the appropriate decision to the

      20       benefit of our customers, our investors, you know, they

      21       expect to be adequately and fully compensated for that

      22       investment.

      23                 You know, if it's suggested that we would keep

      24       some portion of the asset out of, out of rate base, by

      25       definition our customers or our investors are not being
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       1       adequately and fully compensated, and as such we would

       2       not pursue the project.

       3                 MR. SELF:  Mr. Chairman, just for the record,

       4       the deposition transcript is a part of that giant

       5       composite Exhibit Number 4. I just wanted to state that

       6       for the record.

       7                 Thank you, Mr. Forrest.  I have no further

       8       questions.

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.

      10                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioners, I want to go

      11       to staff unless -- I want to go to staff, and then I'll

      12       come back to the bench.

      13                 Staff, you're recognized.

      14                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      15       BY MS. BROWN:

      16            Q.   Good morning, Mr. Forrest.  How are you?

      17            A.   I'm well.  Thank you.

      18            Q.   Good.  Now I think you've stated FPL's

      19       position that the EnergySecure line would be placed in

      20       FPL's rate base and entitled to earn a return on equity

      21       as approved by the PSC; correct?

      22            A.   That is correct.

      23            Q.   Can you -- you talked with Mr. Self just a

      24       second ago about when you would come in for a rate case

      25       to recover the costs of the project, and you said when
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       1       the project is placed in service.  Could you tell us

       2       what the current proposed in-service date of the project

       3       is?

       4            A.   Currently proposed as January 1st of 2014.

       5            Q.   Okay.  Now if you'd turn to Page 11 of your

       6       direct testimony.  You indicate that FP&L will have

       7       access to additional capacity on the upstream pipeline.

       8       And we wanted to ask is the upstream pipeline, to your

       9       knowledge, reserving additional capacity should you need

      10       additional capacity in the future, which it seems to me

      11       you're contemplating?

      12            A.   If I understand your question correctly, would

      13       they have capacity available for us beyond the 600 that

      14       is contemplated?

      15            Q.   Yes.  Thank you for phrasing my question much

      16       better than I did.

      17            A.   I was just making sure I was clear.

      18                 The upstream supply, the Company E proposal is

      19       for 600 a day starting on January 1st of 2014 as well,

      20       or starting around 2014.  I'm not sure of the specific

      21       date of the start.

      22                 But the, their project as proposed is

      23       expandable, but I wouldn't say that they are reserving

      24       anything for us, nor have we committed to buy anything

      25       from them beyond the initial 600.  If at such time that
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       1       we need additional gas, we will go back to them and, and

       2       talk to them about potential supply, but we'll talk to

       3       others as well.  And -- I'm sorry.

       4            Q.   No.  That's okay.  Please finish.

       5            A.   I was just going to say, and we'll make the

       6       appropriate decision at that time, whatever it is,

       7       whether we want to go back to Station 85 or to

       8       Perryville or to Zone 3.  You know, there's all kinds of

       9       different supply points, and we'll make that assessment

      10       at that appropriate time.

      11            Q.   Well, at that time, if you did go back to the

      12       upstream pipeline and ask for additional capacity,

      13       wouldn't they have to apply to FERC for an expansion

      14       project and have it approved before additional capacity

      15       would be available?

      16            A.   That is my understanding.  Yes.

      17            Q.   Would you agree that the major benefit to

      18       FPL's shareholders if this project is completed is the

      19       increase in FPL's rate base?

      20            A.   I would say probably any question around rates

      21       is probably just a little bit outside of the scope of my

      22       personal area of expertise.

      23            Q.   Well, then, let's, let's turn to your

      24       deposition transcript on Page 63, Lines 1 through 14.

      25                 Are you there?
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       1            A.   Yes.

       2            Q.   And there you were asked the question, "Could

       3       you similarly list the major benefits to FPL's

       4       shareholders if the project is completed?"

       5                 Could you read that answer?

       6            A.   Yes, ma'am.

       7                 "Well, I guess the one benefit is it's an

       8       increase in our rate base and that would be the benefit.

       9       I mean, this is -- this was not developed as a strategic

      10       alternative to enter the gas business, so to speak.

      11       We're not looking to enter the gas business.  This was a

      12       specific unique opportunity to propose a project that

      13       wound up being the best alternative for our customers,

      14       and that's specifically why it was proposed, was for our

      15       customers."

      16            Q.   But you did say in the beginning of that

      17       answer that the benefit would be an increase in FPL's

      18       rate base; correct?

      19            A.   Yes, I did.  Yes, ma'am.  I am certainly not a

      20       rates expert nor do I understand how that works.  This

      21       was an attempt to be responsive, I suppose.

      22            Q.   Okay.  Do you agree that since the proposed

      23       pipeline is within the jurisdiction of the Florida

      24       Public Service Commission, the Commission will have

      25       oversight of all costs, cost overruns and prudence of
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       1       the project?

       2            A.   Yes.  Yes, we do.

       3            Q.   Okay.  In your deposition at Page 63, Line 25,

       4       through Page 64, Lines 1 and 2, you state that you are

       5       not sure that there are risks associated with the

       6       EnergySecure line that you wouldn't associate with other

       7       pipelines as well.  Do you see that?

       8            A.   That is correct.

       9            Q.   Wouldn't you agree though that FPL and thus

      10       its ratepayers would have more implied liability risks

      11       if it owned the pipeline than if it leased capacity on

      12       other companies' pipelines?

      13            A.   What, what type of risks?

      14            Q.   What do I mean by implied liability risks?

      15            A.   Yes, ma'am.

      16            Q.   I mean explosions, other unforeseen force

      17       majeure events that might occur.

      18            A.   Yeah.  I think I follow your questioning.

      19       Yes.  I mean, if it's, if it's owned and operated by

      20       FPL, there is a risk associated with that.  Yes.

      21            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

      22                 How does FP&L plan to ensure against those

      23       risks?

      24            A.   I'm not sure the final decision has been made:

      25       Either through self-insurance or insuring the pipeline

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        95

       1       with an outside entity.  We have discussed both.  I'm

       2       not sure a final decision has been made.

       3                 MS. BROWN:  Mr. Chairman, if I might just have

       4       a minute.

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Take your time.  Nobody

       6       leaves.  This is kind of a run-in-place.

       7                 (Pause.)

       8       BY MS. BROWN:

       9            Q.   Mr. Forrest, we're passing out some responses

      10       to staff's discovery.

      11            A.   Okay.

      12            Q.   We probably don't need to address every one,

      13       but I wanted everyone to have a copy for reference if we

      14       need it.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.

      16                 MR. BUTLER:  Ms. Brown, is this part of the

      17       composite exhibit, discovery?

      18                 MS. BROWN:  Yes, it is.  It's already been

      19       introduced into the record.

      20                 MR. BUTLER:  Okay.

      21                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  This is just for ease of

      22       cross-examination; is that right?

      23                 MS. BROWN:  Yes.

      24                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.

      25                 Commissioners, while they're passing that out,
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       1       just for planning purposes -- I didn't do it this

       2       morning.  Let me do it now to give you some kind of -- I

       3       know that you have other things that you're going to try

       4       to do during the, the lunch hour.  Just for planning

       5       purposes, we'll probably take a lunch break around 12:30

       6       and come back at 1:45.  So that'll give you an

       7       opportunity to kind of plan from there.  Okay?

       8                 Ms. Brown.

       9       BY MS. BROWN:

      10            Q.   Mr. Forrest, you just said that you haven't

      11       made any final decisions on how you would insure against

      12       the risks of the pipeline.  Would you agree that there

      13       are several different alternatives?

      14            A.   Yes.  That's my understanding.  Yes.

      15            Q.   Can you describe them?

      16            A.   That is probably outside the scope of my area

      17       of expertise.

      18            Q.   Well, then who do you think could answer these

      19       questions?  I don't mind reserving them as long as I

      20       know somebody can answer them along the way.

      21            A.   That's a good, that's a good question.

      22            Q.   I mean, I could have you read the responses to

      23       the interrogatories.

      24            A.   Yeah.  I mean, we could, we could do that.  I

      25       would probably defer to Witness Collins.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  Well, let's -- we'll try that.

       2            A.   Okay.

       3                 MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman?

       4                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Butler.

       5                 MR. BUTLER:  I would note that the exhibits

       6       that were passed out by staff here, I'm sorry, the

       7       interrogatory answers that were passed out by staff,

       8       some of these were sponsored by Mr. Sharra.  It may be

       9       appropriate -- we'll try to get with staff in the time

      10       between witnesses, but it may be that some of these it

      11       makes sense to raise with Mr. Sharra.

      12                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Thank you,

      13       Mr. Butler.  And also too, if some other witness comes

      14       up, just give them a heads up on what may be appropriate

      15       for the witness.  We'll do that.  Thank you.

      16                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

      17                 MS. BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Butler.

      18                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Ms. Brown.

      19       BY MS. BROWN:

      20            Q.   Would you agree that increasing the rate base

      21       by the approximate 1.5 billion cost of the proposed

      22       pipeline improves the financial wherewithal and

      23       financial strength of FPL?

      24            A.   Again, from my deposition, I assume, again,

      25       probably an attempt to be responsive as opposed to being
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       1       the expert on the subject.  I would probably defer that

       2       to a, to a rates expert.

       3            Q.   Well, why don't we read your deposition again.

       4            A.   Well, yes, certainly I will.

       5            Q.   You can turn to Page 64, Lines 14 through 17.

       6            A.   "Will the proposed pipeline make FPL

       7       financially stronger?"

       8                 And my response was, "I think any time you

       9       increase your rate base, it improves the financial

      10       wherewithal of the company."

      11            Q.   I think that's, that'll probably be fine.

      12            A.   Okay.

      13            Q.   Also in that deposition at Page 64, Lines 3 to

      14       13, you stated that the proposed pipeline will not

      15       increase or decrease the financial risks to FP&L and its

      16       shareholders; correct?

      17            A.   That was my response, yes.

      18            Q.   Okay.

      19                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry.  Ms. Brown, where are

      20       you reading in his deposition?

      21                 MS. BROWN:  Page 64, Lines 3 through 13.

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  Okay.  Thank you.  I guess I

      23       would prefer, if possible, Mr. Forrest to simply read in

      24       his answer, if that's what you're referring him back to,

      25       or you read it to him.
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       1                 MS. BROWN:  Sure.

       2       BY MS. BROWN:

       3            Q.   You want to turn to Page 64?

       4            A.   Yes, I'm there.  You want the question and the

       5       answer or just --

       6            Q.   Yes, the question and the answer.

       7            A.   All right.  Thank you.

       8                 It says:  "Will the proposed pipeline increase

       9       or decrease the financial risk to FPL and its

      10       shareholders?"

      11                 "I don't know that it" -- my response was, "I

      12       don't know that it does necessarily either increase or

      13       decrease.  I think what it, what it does is it certainly

      14       for our customers puts control of the delivery of gas

      15       into our hands.  You know, at least as it pertains to

      16       this portion of gas supply for the 600 million of day

      17       one of install, it gives us the opportunity to gain

      18       control of that gas."

      19            Q.   All right.  Thank you.

      20                 Are you aware of any investor-owned monopoly

      21       electric utility that has a minimum of 100 miles of high

      22       pressure, large diameter, long distance transmission

      23       pipeline included in its electric base from which it

      24       earns an overall rate of return?

      25            A.   I am not familiar with any, any utility that
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       1       does.  I don't know if there is or is not one.  I might

       2       add, I don't know what the -- I don't believe that

       3       there's any limit to the size of it.  If it's for the

       4       primary purpose of delivering gas to a particular

       5       natural gas-fired generator, electric generation, that

       6       there is any limit to the, to the size.  But I'm not

       7       aware of one that is larger or smaller than.

       8            Q.   All right.  Thank you.

       9            A.   You're welcome.

      10            Q.   Now currently FPL recovers all its costs for

      11       transporting natural gas through the fuel clause; is

      12       that correct?

      13            A.   Yes.  For the contracts that we have signed

      14       with FGT, Gulfstream, and on the Southeast Supply

      15       Header, SESH, we recover those through the fuel clause.

      16       That is correct.

      17            Q.   And FPL does not earn a rate of return on the

      18       transportation of natural gas currently; correct?

      19            A.   That is correct.  For those three contracts,

      20       that is correct.

      21            Q.   If FPL builds this pipeline and its proposal

      22       to include it in electric rate base is approved, FPL

      23       will for the first time be earning a rate of return on

      24       the transportation of natural gas; correct?

      25            A.   I might defer the specifics of that to, to
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       1       Mr. Sharra.

       2            Q.   All right.

       3            A.   As I'm not entirely positive if our existing

       4       oil and gas line, the 18-inch line that's referred to in

       5       this case is in base rates or if it's passed through the

       6       fuel clause.  I'm not entirely sure of that, or any

       7       other gas or oil facilities that we have.

       8            Q.   Right.  And that's the 36-mile line?

       9            A.   That is correct.

      10            Q.   Okay.  All right.  We'll ask Mr. Sharra that.

      11                 In fact, I think if you'll give me just a

      12       minute, we may save the rest of our questions for

      13       Mr. Sharra.

      14                 I have now three oddball questions that we

      15       don't know who, who can answer, so perhaps you all can,

      16       can help.  If you can't answer them, Mr. Forrest, just

      17       direct us to who can.

      18            A.   Okay.

      19            Q.   Okay.  Has FP&L included costs related to

      20       FPL's proposed EnergySecure line in its rate case filing

      21       in Docket Number 080677-EI?

      22            A.   No, we have not.

      23            Q.   Not in account 183.560?

      24            A.   I'm not sure of a specific account.  No.

      25            Q.   Okay.  Based on FPL's proposed accounting
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       1       treatment, will FPL begin to accrue AFUDC on costs

       2       incurred beginning January 2010?

       3            A.   I would defer that question to, to, I believe,

       4       Mr. Sharra.

       5            Q.   Okay.  Under FPL's proposal, will FPL continue

       6       to accrue AFUDC -- well, this may be deferred to

       7       Mr. Sharra as well.

       8                 See, I'm glad I asked you.  And that's all the

       9       questions we have.  Thank you, Mr. Forrest.

      10                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

      11                 Commissioner Skop, you're recognized, sir.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      13                 Good morning.

      14                 THE WITNESS:  Good morning.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Just if I could draw your

      16       attention to Page 6 of your prefiled testimony, Lines 17

      17       through 19, please.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And starting on Line 18

      20       you stated that "FPL does not currently have enough firm

      21       gas transportation capacity under contract to meet this

      22       increased need for natural gas resulting from the

      23       modernization projects that will be coming online."

      24                 I guess my question would be, does this

      25       conclusion encompass the additional firm capacity that
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       1       FPL has already contracted for under the expansion to

       2       the FGT Phase 8 pipeline?

       3                 THE WITNESS:  That is correct.  That is

       4       correct.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

       6                 THE WITNESS:  The -- to be clear,

       7       Commissioner, the Phase 8 expansion on FGT's system is

       8       to supply additional gas to the West County 3 -- or not

       9       additional gas, but to supply gas to West County 3, to

      10       supply additional gas to West County 1 and 2 beyond what

      11       was purchased.  I believe our original purchase from

      12       Gulfstream, I believe, was 345,000 a day.  Those units

      13       can actually run up to 200,000 a day each, so that was

      14       additionally on the Phase 8.  We bought some additional

      15       gas for West County 1 and 2 as well as to deliver on a

      16       firm basis to the Turkey Point facilities.  So all in,

      17       it was the 400,000 need on --

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Thank you.  And I

      19       just wanted to turn your attention to Interrogatory

      20       Number 157 that I guess Ms. Brown had mentioned.  And do

      21       you have that in front of you?

      22                 THE WITNESS:  I believe I do.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

      24                 THE WITNESS:  One fifty --

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  157.
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  157.  Yes.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And this, I guess,

       3       touches upon something in Mr. Sharra's testimony where

       4       he spoke about the 36-mile dual fuel pipeline between

       5       the Riviera Beach terminal and the Martin plant.  Are

       6       you familiar with that pipeline?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I am.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  With respect, I guess, to

       9       the question presented in the interrogatory, staff had

      10       asked whether FPL was aware of any investor-owned

      11       utility that had a minimum of a 100-mile contiguous

      12       (phonetic) interstate pipeline, and it also was brought

      13       up by Mr. Self's question about that this had been

      14       never, never been done before in terms of putting it

      15       into base rates.

      16                 Are you aware for Item 4, being the 36-mile

      17       pipeline from the Riviera to the Martin plant, is that

      18       currently included in FPL's base rates, that pipeline

      19       itself?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  I am not aware.  I actually

      21       deferred to Mr. Sharra on the, on that particular item

      22       with Ms. Brown.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  I'll just reserve

      24       my questions for him.

      25                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.  Anything further

       2       from the bench?  Just, Commissioners, while you -- I'll

       3       come back to you just in case you want a last-minute

       4       question.

       5                 I just had one question in the context of the

       6       capacity about -- I think Mr. Self asked you a series of

       7       questions regarding the initial bids, and I think that

       8       you said that you were not part of that -- you knew

       9       globally how it worked, but you really weren't into, to

      10       use my terms, into the weeds of the, of the contract and

      11       process in terms of the proposals that were submitted.

      12                 Do you know why the decision was made to go

      13       from an initial 400,000 -- let me get, see if I can

      14       check my notes here -- to go from 400 million cubic feet

      15       to 1.6 billion?

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  The initial proposals that

      17       were received, we received proposals from both of the

      18       incumbents, FGT and from Gulfstream, for a complete

      19       supply of 400,000 a day to meet the needs of the

      20       modernizations.  The, you know, the capital costs

      21       incurred -- when we look at our own project, the Florida

      22       EnergySecure line, I'll speak specifically to that.

      23       Looking at the Florida EnergySecure line, we initially

      24       looked at a proposal that could deliver 400,000 a day,

      25       but the incremental costs incurred to go to a 600,000 a
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       1       day solution were, you know, miniscule in looking at the

       2       overall -- and I'll walk you through the, the actual

       3       numbers here for a second.

       4                 The -- there's really two different pipeline

       5       diameters that we could look at to deliver 400,000 a

       6       day.  There's a 24-inch pipeline and a 30-inch pipeline.

       7       Obviously a 30-inch pipeline is going to have greater

       8       throughput in the long run and have more long-term

       9       scalability in just the economies of scale allowing you

      10       to do greater things with that pipe.

      11                 But just looking at a 24-inch pipeline

      12       delivering only 400,000, or 400 million cubic feet a day

      13       as designed, if we were just to lay -- instead of

      14       proposing today a 30-inch, we propose a 24-inch going to

      15       Canaveral, Martin, and Riviera, the capital cost of that

      16       project would be $1.36 billion.  Okay?  So it's 1.36.

      17                 The 30-inch/600 a day proposal that we have in

      18       front of the Commission for approval, the capital cost

      19       on that 30-inch/600 million cubic foot a day is

      20       1.53 billion.  It's $170 million of incremental costs.

      21       And I don't mean to dismiss the $170 million as being

      22       miniscule.  It's not miniscule.  But what you gain for

      23       spending that additional dollars is, is absolute

      24       scalability in the long run.  And that's, that's how

      25       when, when Mr. Stelf (sic.), excuse me, when Mr. Self
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       1       spoke to the combined proposal from Company E, the

       2       confidential document that you looked at earlier, along

       3       with our own proposal, how the capital costs, when you

       4       compare that to FGT's $1 billion, I believe they've

       5       said, proposal, that's how these things work out is that

       6       in the long run this thing is highly scalable and very

       7       inexpensively.

       8                 A 30-inch -- and this is another comparator --

       9       a 30-inch/400 a day project can be installed for

      10       $1.52 billion, or 1.516 to be specific.  Again, our

      11       proposal for 600 a day is 1.53.  It's a difference of

      12       $15 million.  And how you get that is it's the exact

      13       same pipe, it's the exact same process to install it.

      14       You have to dig a trench, lay the pipe, weld it, test

      15       it, go through that entire process.  It's the addition

      16       of one turbine in the compressor station.  It's a

      17       $15 million turbine is what allows you to grow from

      18       400,000 a day to 600,000 a day on a 30-inch pipe.

      19                 And we do consider that to be a minor expense.

      20       It's 1 percent of the overall cost is what allows you to

      21       go from that 400,000 a day to 600,000 a day solution.

      22                 So, you know, I felt like there was some

      23       confusion as, as to a 400,000 a day project, you know,

      24       costing two-thirds of what a 600,000 a day does.  They

      25       basically cost the same amount.  That's why we've
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       1       proposed a 600,000 a day solution.  It just provides

       2       good sense.

       3                 So then as you scale this project further, so

       4       once you go to 800,000 a day or a Bcf a day, a 30-inch

       5       pipeline will allow you to deliver all the way up to 1.2

       6       Bcf a day before you have to ever add any additional

       7       pipe to the mainline.  Those are hundred-million-dollar

       8       expansions, not billion-dollar expansions that we're

       9       looking at now.

      10                 You know, FGT's proposal to add 400,000 a day

      11       is about a billion dollars.  And that's because they've

      12       already gone through the, what I'll describe as the

      13       inexpensive compression expansions of their system.  Now

      14       every time they come back to, to do an addition for FPL

      15       or for anybody else in the state, they have to add

      16       hundreds of miles of pipe in some cases or several miles

      17       of pipe that wouldn't be required, you know, at least

      18       along the mainline in the proposal that we've put in

      19       front of the Commission.  They're very inexpensive

      20       expansions over time.

      21                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Let me ask you this, and if

      22       you're not the right witness, then fine.  But I think

      23       also in response to some questions that Mr. Self asked

      24       you, if I heard you right, and of course my writing has

      25       gone cold on me, so I can't really read it right now, is
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       1       that there's a discourse about the savings to the

       2       ratepayers or customers.  I think you said savings to

       3       the customers.

       4                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  There's a

       5       projected savings to our customers.

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Walk me through that.  I

       7       wanted to follow that train of thought with you on that.

       8       Walk me through that, how that works.

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  The specifics of how it

      10       works I would defer to Witness Enjamio --

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.

      12                 THE WITNESS:  -- who actually ran all of the

      13       analysis and is responsible for --

      14                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Witness?

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Enjamio.

      16                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Good Lord, please don't ask me

      18       to spell it.

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  I'll wait.

      20       Mr. Butler, you can help me.

      21                 THE WITNESS:  E-N-J-A-M-I-O, I believe.

      22                 But, but at a high level, the way the analysis

      23       is run is to look at a 40-year time horizon.  It's a

      24       customer present value revenue requirements analysis.

      25       So he looks at all the dollars that your customers will

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       110

       1       spend with, with different scenarios run.

       2                 So we looked at it with the FGT -- it's part

       3       of our overall system.  It's a complete dispatch of the

       4       entire system over 40 years.  So he, he looks at the

       5       incremental cost to our customers of having the FGT

       6       proposal in place and the complete cost of having the

       7       FPL proposal in place along with the Company E.  And

       8       then as expansions are needed, those expansions are

       9       added in, and then he just continues to run the

      10       analysis.

      11                 And ultimately what it shows is basically on a

      12       present value basis, over the course of that analysis,

      13       the FPL proposal along with the Company E upstream

      14       proposal is $118 million, I believe is the number,

      15       $118 million better than the FGT proposal.

      16                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Now let me, let me

      17       use my country perspective on this.  Is that -- I guess

      18       what you're saying, and let me kind of say this and then

      19       I may have a question on that, is that in the process,

      20       and again, I'm not going to get into the weeds of the

      21       contracting because you said that's not your deal in

      22       terms of the proposals that were submitted and all, but

      23       I guess from a high level standpoint, as you looked at

      24       it, you're saying that the cost of contracting with FGT

      25       to expand their capacity to bring additional gas to the
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       1       plants and versus the company going out with this other

       2       perspective and building the pipeline is cheaper.

       3                 I mean, that's from a -- that's about as kind

       4       of commonsensical as I can break it down.  Is that, is

       5       that -- did I read that right?

       6                 THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  I hate to describe it as

       7       cheaper per se.

       8                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  More, more

       9       economical.  How about that?

      10                 THE WITNESS:  It's more economic.  It is.  A

      11       couple of things in play.  One is when FGT proposed

      12       their Phase 8 expansion, which is what Commissioner Skop

      13       referred to earlier, we were the anchor tenant of that,

      14       of that particular project.  It's a 400,000 a day

      15       solution delivering gas to, to Martin County

      16       essentially.  That, that project is a $2.5 billion

      17       project.  Okay.  So it sort of gives you the scope of

      18       the project that they're looking --

      19                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  What size is that pipe?

      20       Excuse me.  Don't lose your train of thought, but what

      21       size is that pipe?

      22                 THE WITNESS:  That's an 800,000 a day

      23       pipeline.

      24                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  So that's a 30-inch?

      25                 THE WITNESS:  I'll --
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       1                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Oh, okay.  Go ahead.

       2                 THE WITNESS:  I'll defer to the experts.  But

       3       what I will say is I wouldn't describe it as what size

       4       is that pipe.

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  We're talking about the

       6       capacity?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Only because they have a

       8       significant amount of infrastructure in place.  So

       9       they've got, you know, compressor stations all along the

      10       Panhandle down into Florida.  They have a number of

      11       areas where they have multiple sections of pipe running

      12       side by side by side.  This Phase 8 expansion would add

      13       a significant amount more pipe along with upgraded

      14       compressor stations and potentially another compressor

      15       station in addition to what they already have.  That

      16       project is only about 75 percent subscribed, as I

      17       understand it.

      18                 So they have about 200 million, roughly

      19       speaking, and Witness Sexton can speak more specifically

      20       about what they do have available.  But they have

      21       roughly about 25 percent of that pipe is available.

      22                 Part of what they have proposed to us in their

      23       most recent proposal actually included part of that

      24       capacity as well.  So it's -- their existing proposal to

      25       us, as I understand it, was a billion dollars, but
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       1       they're also taking credit for what they spent on the

       2       Phase 8 and haven't (phonetic) added that into the

       3       amount.  So I'm not sure how that math works

       4       necessarily, but that sort of gives you an idea of their

       5       last couple of expansions and the dollars spent to make

       6       that work.

       7                 But by contrast, what we're proposing with

       8       this 30-inch/600 million cubic foot a day pipeline, the

       9       next expansion to go to 800 million a day is about

      10       $125 million is my understanding.  Now that doesn't

      11       include any interconnects or laterals that would have to

      12       be built.  But just in terms of the mainline expansion,

      13       it's about $125 million.

      14                 To go to the next quantity, to go up to a

      15       billion or, you know, if that's where we're headed, that

      16       next, that next 200 a day to get to the billion is

      17       another $125 million.

      18                 So that's how, when you look at it on a life

      19       cycle basis, adding in this inexpensive capacity later

      20       on really makes up for, you know, what is being spent

      21       up-front to make this work.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Commissioner Skop.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      24       I just had a few more questions that I did not get to

      25       previously.
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       1                 Mr. Forrest, I guess I just wanted to cover

       2       three additional points.  First and foremost, the

       3       contingency planning regarding getting firm gas

       4       supply -- I guess the subject of this need determination

       5       proceeding.

       6                 But in order to get gas supply, firm gas

       7       supply to both the modernization plants in Riviera Beach

       8       and Cape Canaveral, three things need to happen first

       9       and foremost.  You need the upstream pipeline to be

      10       completed, you need a need determination from this

      11       Commission, and then the pipeline itself would need to

      12       be constructed by the in-service date of January 1,

      13       2014; is that correct?

      14                 THE WITNESS:  That is correct, Commissioner.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  With respect to the

      16       upstream pipeline, given the current natural gas

      17       pricing, is that pricing sufficient to support continued

      18       development, exploration and delivery of the

      19       nontraditional sources of natural gas, i.e., the shale

      20       from the Midcontinent to that, I guess, Transco 85?

      21                 THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  We believe it is.

      22       Witness Sexton can go through sort of the prevalence of

      23       that shale gas, development, rig counts, how all that

      24       kind of factors into our long-term analysis.  He can go

      25       through that in some detail for you.
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       1                 But at a high level, absolutely, we do believe

       2       that it does support at least maintaining where we are

       3       today and growing from there.

       4                 One of the unique things about Station 85 is

       5       that a number of producers, actual independent producers

       6       of this shale gas, the Midcontinent shale gas, a number

       7       of producers have taken out pipeline capacity to get

       8       specifically to Station 85.  There is about 3 Bcf of new

       9       pipeline capacity entering the Station 85 market with no

      10       significant additional takeaway capacity being built

      11       away from there other than what we have proposed and

      12       Transco's own work around that station as well.

      13                 But of that, of that 3 Bcf coming into Station

      14       85, you know, roughly 80 percent of it or so has been

      15       subscribed to producers that are looking to push their

      16       gas as far east as they can.  That's one of the things,

      17       as we interviewed a number of pipeline companies as well

      18       as a number of independent producers discussing, you

      19       know, the relevance of Station 85 in terms of how it

      20       might fit into our portfolio, it was one of the things

      21       that really highlighted for us that producers are

      22       serious about their own gas as well as selling at

      23       Station 85 was the fact that they were willing to take

      24       out these long-haul capacity contracts.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Thank you.  And
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       1       with respect to the construction of this pipeline if it

       2       were approved by the Commission, what would happen if

       3       there were a substantial construction delay, to the

       4       extent that this Commission has previously approved

       5       about $2.5 billion for both of the modernization plants

       6       that are scheduled to come online, and what is the

       7       contingency plan if construction delays were to occur

       8       associated with this pipeline?

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Right.  It's a question that we

      10       have definitely contemplated ourselves.  There's a

      11       couple of things that we have done.

      12                 One is we've started this process really five

      13       years prior to, or four and a half years prior to the

      14       gas being needed.  Part of that being the -- just the

      15       regulatory process for the Natural Gas Transmission

      16       Pipeline Siting Act is fairly untested, so we wanted to

      17       make sure we gave ourselves a fair amount of time to get

      18       through that process and then to get through the

      19       construction process as well.

      20                 The short answer is we've done contingency

      21       planning around both Cape Canaveral and Riviera with

      22       respect to workarounds that are potentially -- we put in

      23       place, which would allow us to get gas there in the

      24       short term.  Now, again, that would be, you know,

      25       depending upon whether the upstream supply was there on
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       1       January 1st of '14, we would have the incremental gas to

       2       be able to deliver it.  Or if it wasn't there by

       3       January 1st of 2014, we could at least -- the Canaveral

       4       and Riviera units would by far be the most efficient on

       5       our system, so they're going to get dispatched prior to

       6       the rest of our gas fleet.  We could at least move gas

       7       up to those facilities and work in the interim until we

       8       get the overall pipeline online.

       9                 I would say probably Witness Sharra can get

      10       into that in terms of the workarounds in a little more

      11       detail.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Thank you.  And

      13       then three more additional questions.

      14                 I don't know if you have it before you, but do

      15       you have Mr. Langston's direct testimony?

      16                 THE WITNESS:  I do not.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Butler, can I give you

      18       my copy, generally speaking.  And I guess I just want

      19       him to agree or disagree with the statements there.

      20                 MR. BUTLER:  Sure.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  I don't have my

      22       document in front of me, so I'm going to go from memory.

      23       But I believe it's on Page 9 of 45 of Mr. Langston's

      24       testimony, if I'm correct.  And he suggests that with

      25       some minimal additions, i.e., additional compression,
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       1       the excess capacity on Phase 8 could be used to meet the

       2       need of the Riviera plant.  Based on the lines that I

       3       have highlighted there, would you agree or disagree with

       4       Mr. Langston's assertion?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  I would, I would agree

       6       with what he says there.  If I could just caveat that.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And on that, on top of

       8       that, is, is that a stopgap solution, i.e., a Band-Aid,

       9       or is more additional gas going to be required?

      10                 THE WITNESS:  I don't know if I would describe

      11       it as a stopgap.  I'm not sure FGT has interest -- and I

      12       don't want to speak for any of the FGT folks, but I'm

      13       assuming they don't want to make a one- or two-year sale

      14       with that Phase 8 capacity.  I'm sure they're looking

      15       to, to sell it on a longer term basis.  I'm assuming a

      16       stopgap, as you refer to it, would be a, you know, a

      17       year or two until we got ours online.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  What I meant by that would

      19       be, that would be firm capacity limited to the extent

      20       that I think they're looking for an additional 200,000

      21       or 200 million.  I think I got that right.  It's hard.

      22       I don't have it in front of me.  Yes.  That additional

      23       capacity, and that would be all they'd be able to

      24       deliver in terms of additional incremental capacity.  So

      25       they would not be able to deliver as much throughput as,
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       1       say, a new pipeline would.  Is that your understanding

       2       of that?

       3                 THE WITNESS:  Well, that is, that is my

       4       understanding.  I will say that -- this kind of goes to

       5       my earlier point.  When they proposed their Phase 8

       6       expansion, they actually built, as I understand it, or

       7       have proposed to build a 30-inch pipeline, which will

       8       connect their, their western leg to their eastern leg

       9       going north of Lake Okeechobee.  That's a 30-inch

      10       pipeline, which, you know, from my earlier discussion,

      11       really is kind of oversized for a 400,000 a day

      12       delivery, which, which is what that pipeline will

      13       deliver under Phase 8.  So they have the ability to

      14       deliver additional gas through that pipe.  They have

      15       oversized it.  And it sort of goes to our own point as

      16       to why a 30-inch pipeline with 600,000 a day is the

      17       right number.  Just scalable, it's -- they can, they can

      18       grow it.

      19                 Their Phase 8 capacity, again, Witness Sexton

      20       can probably go into that, what is available on the

      21       Phase 8 capacity in a little more detail than I can.

      22       But that Phase 8 capacity I think is what they've

      23       suggested here is available to deliver down using that

      24       new 30-inch pipeline that they're building for Phase 8,

      25       which would then go into, into the Riviera facility.
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       1       But it also misses the fact that the 18-inch line that

       2       we're utilizing as part of our proposal still requires a

       3       substantial amount of capital investment in order to

       4       make that solution work.  So that's not, that's not

       5       accounted for here.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And to that point,

       7       the, the dual fuel line that you just mentioned, that

       8       does not currently have the lateral over to Riviera

       9       Beach; is that correct?

      10                 THE WITNESS:  I believe it, it does.  Again,

      11       I'll defer the specifics of the engineering design to

      12       Mr. Sharra, not to continue to dump into his lap, but he

      13       is the expert on it.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  But there is a way to get over

      16       to the, at least the 45th Street terminal.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  It's very close.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Which is very close.  It's

      19       within 3 miles, I believe.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And then one final

      21       question.  Mr. Butler mentioned this in his opening

      22       statement, and in your testimony it's referred to in

      23       multiple places, but we talk about the new pipeline

      24       being able to displace existing capacity either on the

      25       FGT or Gulfstream Pipeline.
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       1                 You know, I know that if additional capacity

       2       was displaced -- in your prefiled testimony it talks

       3       about, you know, off-system sales or being able to sell

       4       that capacity to others.  What about the, the sunk costs

       5       in terms of what was initially required to reserve that

       6       capacity?  Are we essentially, you know, displacing

       7       capacity that a premium has already been paid for for

       8       that capacity?

       9                 THE WITNESS:  The answer to your question is,

      10       is, yes, that those costs would continue to be paid for.

      11       So when we looked at the project again, you know, a

      12       400,000 a day solution was essentially the same capital

      13       costs for us as it was for a 600,000 a day solution.  So

      14       this -- the notion of excess per se almost comes not

      15       free of charge but relatively inexpensively in the grand

      16       scheme of the overall project.

      17                 It's the same way that -- not to speak again

      18       for Company E, because that's their own business, but

      19       they have a certain revenue requirement, and that's how

      20       they establish their rate is, is through that revenue

      21       requirement, similar to how the utility would do it

      22       under their ratemaking.

      23                 But when, when Company E sets their rate,

      24       whether they do it on 400,000 or they do it on 600,000,

      25       they still have the same revenue requirement at the end
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       1       of the day.  So it just changes the denominator.  It

       2       would just cause your pricing to go up, and it's not

       3       exactly 50 percent, but it's roughly 50 percent is about

       4       the price of the increase by having a lower denominator,

       5       the 400,000 a day.  That's where we got to the 600,000 a

       6       day solution.  It's just the right thing to do.  It

       7       makes the most sense from a long-term growth

       8       perspective.

       9                 You know, as that, as that pertains to the

      10       overall project, you know, it just provides a tremendous

      11       amount of growth in the future, both, both on their

      12       system and our system.  Again, they're sizing their

      13       project similarly to how we are, which would allow them

      14       to grow into it as well.  Whether they sell it to other

      15       entities in the State of Florida or they sell it to FPL,

      16       ultimately it just provides for additional gas into the

      17       state coming in from a different third unique supply,

      18       supply point.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

      20                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Commissioner.

      21                 Commissioners, anything further?

      22                 MR. SELF:  Mr. Chairman?

      23                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self.

      24                 MR. SELF:  If I could please request, just for

      25       clarification purposes with respect to Commissioner
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       1       Skop's question, I don't think the page -- so the record

       2       is clear when we're reading this transcript later, if we

       3       could identify what page.  If the witness could say what

       4       page.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  That's fine with me.

       6                 THE WITNESS:  What are you -- I'm sorry.

       7                 MR. BUTLER:  You need us to refer to the page

       8       number in Mr. Langston's testimony?

       9                 THE WITNESS:  That's Page 9 of 45 on

      10       Mr. Langston's.  I'm sorry.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  So I was correct earlier.

      12                 THE WITNESS:  You were.

      13                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Is that clear enough,

      14       Mr. Self?

      15                 MR. SELF:  Yes.

      16                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  That's clear enough for you?

      17                 MR. SELF:  Thank you.

      18                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Hearing nothing

      19       further from the bench, Mr. Butler, you're recognized

      20       for redirect.

      21                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

      22                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      23       BY MR. BUTLER:

      24            Q.   Mr. Forrest, you were just asked by

      25       Commissioner Skop about the costs that -- I guess he, I
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       1       think he referred to them as sunk costs that would be,

       2       have been paid for, excuse me, the existing commitments

       3       on the FGT and Gulfstream lines that might be released

       4       to, for third-party sales in the event of, or during the

       5       period of excess capacity.

       6                 Are those sunk costs taken into account in

       7       FPL's economic analysis of the EnergySecure line that

       8       shows it to be approximately $100 million superior to

       9       the FGT proposal?

      10            A.   Yes, they are.  The analysis, and, again,

      11       Mr. Enjamio can get through it in more, in more detail,

      12       but the analysis assumes on day one a need of 400,000 a

      13       day.  So, again, by definition there's 200,000 a day of

      14       excess capacity available on our system.  We don't defer

      15       any costs.  We don't, we don't hide the fact that there

      16       is this excess.  It's taken all into full account with

      17       respect to the analysis itself.

      18                 So the cost that we have on FGT, the cost that

      19       we have on Gulfstream both, as well as the small

      20       additional cost on our own capital project are all

      21       factored into the analysis.  There's no deferral of

      22       those costs.  There's no pulling it out and assigning it

      23       somewhere different.

      24                 And with all of that still intact, it still

      25       shows that the FPL project, in combination with Company
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       1       E, is still the best proposal by the some hundred

       2       million dollars that you, that you mentioned.

       3            Q.   Thank you.  Mr. Forrest, Ms. Brown asked you a

       4       couple of questions about the recovery of, excuse me,

       5       sorry, of charges paid for transportation capacity to

       6       the existing pipelines that's recovered through the fuel

       7       clause, and she contrasted that to the EnergySecure line

       8       where there would be a return paid on the investment in

       9       the pipeline.  Do you remember those questions?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   Okay.  What is your understanding as to

      12       whether, when FPL customers are paying a charge that FPL

      13       has had to pay in turn to FGT or Gulfstream, whether

      14       those charges reflect a return to FGT and Gulfstream on

      15       the pipeline investment?

      16            A.   Yes, I believe they would include a rate of

      17       return for the, for their parent company.

      18            Q.   And that return, would that return be

      19       recovered through the charge through the fuel clause for

      20       that transportation capacity?

      21            A.   Yes.  It all, it all comes in in the form of

      22       one demand charge.  So whatever, you know, their revenue

      23       requirements are based on, you know, their capital

      24       outlay, their O&M charges, the facilities included in

      25       the project as well as their own rate of return.  So it
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       1       would all be reflected in the demand charge that we then

       2       pass through the fuel clause.  So, yes, it does include

       3       a rate of return.

       4            Q.   Ms. Brown also asked you whether if the

       5       Company E upstream pipeline were expanded in the future

       6       to provide more than 600 MMcf to FPL, that there would

       7       be need to be FERC approval for the expansion.  Do you

       8       remember those questions?

       9            A.   Yes.

      10            Q.   Okay.  Would expansions of FGT or any other

      11       incumbent pipeline that provides gas to FPL in order to

      12       provide additional supplies to FPL also require FERC

      13       approval?

      14            A.   That is my understanding.  Yes.

      15                 MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman?

      16                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, sir.

      17                 MR. BUTLER:  I am going to distribute a copy

      18       of Interrogatory Number 145, the answer to Interrogatory

      19       145, which is part of the composite exhibit too that

      20       staff has identified and the parties have stipulated to.

      21       But just for clarification, there have been I think at

      22       least two runs through what this interrogatory shows

      23       regarding the comparison of the 400 to 600 MMcf pipeline

      24       economics.  And I'd ask Mr. Forrest simply to describe

      25       briefly, because I know he's already run through some of
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       1       this with you, but I'd like for him to describe briefly

       2       what this interrogatory shows so that you can see on

       3       paper at the same time that he is explaining the

       4       comparison of the different pipeline sizes and costs.

       5                 MR. SELF:  Mr. Chairman, I --

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self.

       7                 MR. SELF:  Yeah.  I think I need to object.

       8       This is already in the record.  This is, strikes me as

       9       trying to -- it goes far beyond the scope of redirect.

      10       He's asking additional questions about information

      11       that's already otherwise in the record.

      12                 MR. BUTLER:  Mr. Chairman?

      13                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, sir.

      14                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm not asking Mr. Forrest to

      15       introduce any new information into the record.  First of

      16       all, as Mr. Self acknowledges, the exhibit itself

      17       already is in the record.  But what Mr. Forrest did in

      18       response to your questions was kind of run through

      19       orally, without the benefit of the exhibit before you or

      20       of the interrogatory answer before you and the other

      21       Commissioners, the logic and the information that was

      22       presented here.  And I'm simply asking Mr. Forrest to

      23       briefly describe what the interrogatory answer shows,

      24       where hopefully doing so with the tables and the

      25       information included here before you would make it
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       1       clearer and easier to understand.

       2                 MR. SELF:  And, Mr. Chairman, again, this is

       3       already in the record.  They've got testimony for nine

       4       witnesses that they're presenting here today that

       5       discuss all of these, all of this information multiple

       6       times already.  I -- this just seems far beyond the

       7       scope of, of redirect.

       8                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  I think that there's -- let

       9       me hear from Ms. Helton first, because I'm thinking that

      10       some of the questions that I had asked are related to

      11       this and some of the questions that were asked from the

      12       bench.  And obviously the Commissioners will give it

      13       whatever weight it deserves.  So I don't think there's

      14       any, any harm in letting it in.

      15                 Ms. Helton?

      16                 MS. HELTON:  Mr. Chairman, if I understand

      17       correctly what Mr. Butler has told you, he's simply

      18       going over again questions that you asked him about and

      19       clarifying and making sure that he got the information

      20       he gave you correct.  And if it would help you, I think

      21       it's appropriate for him to answer these questions.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  I do remember asking the

      23       question about the capacity.  You guys remember when I

      24       was asking about that?  And, as I said, we can give it

      25       the weight, whatever weight it deserves.  It's already
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       1       as an exhibit and all, but it does help.

       2                 You may proceed.

       3                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Thank you.  There are

       4       five cases presented here, and I'll go through each one

       5       of them hopefully fairly quickly.

       6                 The two 24-inch cases show the costs, the

       7       capital costs associated with doing a 24-inch pipeline

       8       at either 400 or 600 million cubic feet a day.  And the

       9       capital costs are the fixed pipe and everything that

      10       goes into the fixed capital of the project, along with

      11       the labor to install it.

      12                 It shows you how much horsepower is needed

      13       from a compression perspective, the cost, the capital

      14       cost of that compression, which totals the total capital

      15       cost.  There's a column in there that says Annual Fuel

      16       Costs.  I'll talk about that briefly in a second, but

      17       ignore that.  It's not part of the total capital costs.

      18       AFUDC and then the total cost in the right-hand column.

      19                 So a 24-inch/400 million a day project is

      20       $1.36 billion.  The 24-inch/600 a day solution comes up

      21       to 1.438.  Now as designed by us at the operating

      22       pressures that we have designed, that 24-inch pipeline

      23       is essentially full at the 600 a day level.  Any

      24       additional expansion beyond 600 million a day on a

      25       24-inch pipeline would require the installation of

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       130

       1       additional pipeline.

       2                 So we would have to go back in, disrupt the

       3       right-of-way, disrupt the landowners, lay new pipe in

       4       the ground.  And that essentially is kind of how FGT

       5       adds incremental capacity to their system is by

       6       continually adding additional pipe, higher compression

       7       and just continuing to add on to their system.  So

       8       there's, there's, you know, sections of their, their,

       9       their pipeline that have three or four pipes laying side

      10       by side by side to get up to the maximum quantities that

      11       they need to deliver.

      12                 On the 30-inch, that's the last three that are

      13       shown there, there's a 400 a day, a 600 a day, and then

      14       the maximum throughput of a 30-inch pipeline, again, at

      15       the pressures we have designed, is 1.25 billion cubic

      16       feet a day.  So you're able to expand that 30-inch

      17       pipeline all the way up to 1.25 before you would ever

      18       have to add that additional pipe on the mainline to

      19       deliver additional volumes of gas.  So this thing is

      20       highly expandable well beyond what a 24-inch can do.

      21                 And you can see on the right-hand side what

      22       the total cost of each of these facilities is.  The

      23       30-inch at 400 a day is 1.56 -- 516, excuse me.  The

      24       600 a day total is 1.531.  So there's only $15 million

      25       of incremental capital costs required to go from 400 to
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       1       600, and that's the 15 that I mentioned earlier and that

       2       Mr. Butler mentioned in his opening statement.

       3                 Finally, the 30-inch at 1.25 billion cubic

       4       feet a day totals 1.72.  Now I mentioned 125 million for

       5       a couple of expansions.  I believe this assumes that all

       6       of it was installed on day one.  It doesn't show like

       7       sort of the incremental cost of adding it over time,

       8       so -- but the expansions to get up to that full 1.25 are

       9       very inexpensive, again, when you compare it to the

      10       overall capital cost of the project.

      11                 In that Annual Fuel Cost column, it shows what

      12       using additional horsepower from a fuel consumption

      13       perspective does to, does to the costs.  So at a 600 a

      14       day solution, the 24-inch pipeline at our fuel

      15       projection spends about $26 million a year just running

      16       the compressors.  So that's just the variable cost of

      17       running the compression stations.

      18                 By contrast, a 30-inch at 600 a day is about

      19       $8 million a year.  So when you contrast the 24- and the

      20       30-inch pipelines, there's about $18 million in

      21       difference just in fuel costs, which, which, you know,

      22       on a present value basis more than makes up for the

      23       difference in the install cost of those two projects.

      24                 And that's, that's why we lean towards the

      25       30-inch project and that's why we went with the 600 a
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       1       day.  It just, it just fit right when you looked at the

       2       overall project.  It just had, it had good scalability

       3       in the long run and it made good sense for our customers

       4       in the short term too.

       5                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.  That's all the

       6       redirect that I have.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Exhibits?

       8                 MR. BUTLER:  Move the admission of Exhibit 5.

       9                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Are there any objections?

      10                 Without objection, show it done.

      11                 (Exhibit 5 admitted into the record.)

      12                 MR. SELF:  And FGT would move Exhibit 95.

      13                 MR. BUTLER:  No objection.

      14                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it

      15       done.

      16                 (Exhibit 95 admitted into the record.)

      17                 Do we have anything -- do we have anything

      18       further for this witness?  Will this witness come back

      19       for rebuttal or is --

      20                 MR. BUTLER:  He will be back for rebuttal,

      21       yes.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Okay.  So you're on

      23       recess.  You're not exactly excused.

      24                 THE WITNESS:  All right.  Thank you.

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Call your next witness.
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       1                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

       2                 MR. PERKO:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  FPL

       3       calls Mr. Robert Sharra.

       4                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Sharra, while you're

       5       coming up, you know that they deferred a lot of things

       6       that you're the go-to guy, so.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Chair, could I also

       8       get my document back from Mr. Forrest?

       9                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Oh, yeah.  Mr. Forrest,

      10       would you give Commissioner Skop back his document?

      11                 Hang on one second, Mr. Perko.

      12                 (Pause.)

      13                 Okay.  Mr. Perko, you may proceed.

      14                 MR. PERKO:  Thank you.

      15                            ROBERT SHARRA

      16       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power &

      17       Light Company and, having been duly sworn, testified as

      18       follows:

      19                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      20       BY MR. PERKO:

      21            Q.   Mr. Sharra, could you please state your full

      22       name and business address for the record.

      23            A.   My name is Robert Sharra, 700 Universe

      24       Boulevard, Juno Beach, Florida 33408.

      25            Q.   And, Mr. Sharra, have you been sworn today?
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       1            A.   Yes, sir, I have.

       2            Q.   Mr. Sharra, did you cause to be filed and,

       3       prepare and cause to be filed in this proceeding direct

       4       testimony consisting of 23 pages?

       5            A.   Yes, sir, I did.

       6            Q.   And did that testimony also include exhibits

       7       prelabeled RGS-1, RGS-2, RGS-3 and RGS-4 that have been

       8       now identified on staff's Comprehensive Exhibit List 6

       9       through 9?

      10            A.   Yes, sir.

      11            Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to your

      12       prefiled direct testimony?

      13            A.   I believe there was one noted change that was

      14       part of errata.  I don't have that with me.  That

      15       changed the total capital cost of the project.

      16            Q.   That change is included in the errata that we

      17       submitted on July 24th?

      18            A.   Yes, sir.

      19            Q.   Thank you.  Other than that change included in

      20       your errata, if I were to ask you the questions in your

      21       testimony today, would your answers be the same?

      22            A.   Yes, sir.

      23            Q.   And do you have any changes to the exhibits

      24       that I identified?

      25            A.   No, sir.
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       1                 MR. PERKO:  At this time, Your Honor, we would

       2       ask that Mr. Sharra's prefiled direct testimony be

       3       included in the record as if read.

       4                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of

       5       the witness will be inserted into the record as though

       6       read.

       7                 (Exhibits 6, 7, 8 and 9 marked for

       8       identification.)
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       1       BY MR. PERKO:

       2            Q.   Mr. Sharra, could you please provide your

       3       summary of your testimony?

       4            A.   I would like to.  Thank you.

       5                 Good morning, Chairman Carter and

       6       Commissioners.  Thank you for the opportunity to address

       7       you today.

       8                 The purpose of my testimony is to support

       9       FPL's request that the Commission grant an affirmative

      10       determination of need for the proposed Florida

      11       EnergySecure line, a unique and important project to

      12       initially serve the natural gas transportation

      13       requirements of FPL's modernizations at the Cape

      14       Canaveral Clean Energy Center and the Riviera Beach

      15       Clean Energy Center.  I would also like to focus on key

      16       components of the project and explain the benefits to

      17       FPL's customers in the state.

      18                 The Florida EnergySecure line is a new

      19       intrastate pipeline to be located entirely within

      20       Florida commencing in Bradford County and extending

      21       southeast to its terminus at FPL's Martin plant.  The

      22       initial facility will consist of approximately 280 miles

      23       of mainline pipe, approximately 23 miles of laterals and

      24       two compressor stations.

      25                 The modernizations are replacing 1960s era oil
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       1       and gas fueled steam units.  The current natural gas

       2       delivery systems were not designed to serve the

       3       increased natural gas pressures or flows required by

       4       today's highly efficient gas turbine technology.

       5       Neither of the two incumbents, either FGT or Gulfstream,

       6       currently serving FPL plants have the capacity nor the

       7       facilities to meet these increased delivery requirements

       8       without a major capital upgrade and expansions of their

       9       systems.  Therefore, a do-nothing scenario is not an

      10       option.

      11                 With the modernizations coming into service in

      12       2013 and 2014, an additional 400 million cubic feet per

      13       day of firm pipeline capacity is required.  Moreover, it

      14       is FPL's expectation that a significant portion of

      15       future generation expansions will also be required,

      16       which will require -- I'm sorry -- which will also be

      17       fueled by natural gas, which will require even greater

      18       transport, transport capacity.

      19                 Depending upon the pace of the economic

      20       recovery and the progress of identified nuclear plant

      21       additions, additional transport capacity could be

      22       required as early as 2018.

      23                 The Riviera Beach modernization will be served

      24       by an existing high pressure oil, natural gas pipeline

      25       owned and operated by FPL that currently connects the
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       1       Martin plant with FPL's 45th Street terminal.  By

       2       utilizing that existing pipeline segment, FPL will avoid

       3       the need to build over 36 miles of new pipeline through

       4       environmentally sensitive areas in western Palm Beach

       5       County.  Further, collocating the EnergySecure line in

       6       the existing transmission rights-of-ways minimizes

       7       impact on the environment and minimizes impact to

       8       residents in proximity to the pipeline route.

       9                 The Florida EnergySecure line presents a

      10       unique opportunity to anchor a new geographically

      11       separate third pipeline into Florida, improving the

      12       physical reliability and security of the gas transport

      13       system.

      14                 In recent history it has been the significant

      15       gas transportation requirements of FPL that have

      16       anchored the expansions of the two incumbent pipeline

      17       systems that currently provide essentially all of FP&L's

      18       natural gas transport capacity and provide a significant

      19       portion of the gas transport capacity for the balance of

      20       the state.  This time, however, we believe FPL has a

      21       better solution for FPL's customers and the state.

      22                 FPL's solution, the Florida EnergySecure line

      23       as a third major pipeline into peninsular Florida, eases

      24       the supply concentration on the two incumbent pipelines

      25       of approximately 2 billion cubic feet per day.  Such
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       1       load concentration is unprecedented in the North

       2       American electric utility industry.  By April 2011 when

       3       the latest expansion of the FGT system comes online, the

       4       majority of FPL's 4.5 million customers will receive

       5       electricity generated from gas delivered through just

       6       these two incumbent pipelines.

       7                 In addition, this project will access

       8       additional natural gas receipt points, creating much

       9       needed competition for gas suppliers and bring increased

      10       market competition dynamics into play.  A broad

      11       portfolio of gas suppliers over a geographically diverse

      12       area reduces the risk of interruption of supply or

      13       delivery from any one production area.

      14                 Finally, FPL has the proven experience to

      15       successfully manage and execute complex schedule and

      16       budget driven energy projects to make the Florida

      17       EnergySecure line a reality and to bring the benefits

      18       this pipeline represents to the customers of FPL and the

      19       State of Florida.

      20                 Thank you.

      21                 MR. PERKO:  I'm sorry.  Mr. Chairman, it

      22       occurred to me that we have some confidential exhibits

      23       for Mr. Sharra, which we can distribute in the red

      24       folders at this time, if that would be your pleasure.

      25                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self, what do you think
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       1       would be most convenient in how we do that?  Are you

       2       going to --

       3                 MR. SELF:  I'm not going to ask him about

       4       those, so I don't need them at this time.

       5                 MR. PERKO:  That's fine.

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Hang on one second.

       7                 Commissioner Skop?

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

       9                 Mr. Self, also the prior confidential exhibit,

      10       are you going to use that one, or can we give those back

      11       to you?

      12                 MR. SELF:  Yes, we meant -- we'll get those at

      13       the break from you.  Thank you.

      14                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Thank you.

      15                 Mr. Self, you may proceed.

      16                 MR. SELF:  Thank you.

      17                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      18       BY MR. SELF:

      19            Q.   Good morning, Mr. Sharra.  I'm Floyd Self,

      20       representing FGT.

      21            A.   Good morning.

      22            Q.   In your summary you said that there was the

      23       potential for new capacity being needed in 2018.  Do you

      24       recall that statement?

      25            A.   Yes, sir, I do.
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       1            Q.   Are you talking about new gas generating plant

       2       that would come on in 2018?

       3            A.   Yes, sir, I am.  The reference is related to

       4       the nuclear delay case.

       5            Q.   Okay.  But at this point in time your Ten-Year

       6       Site Plan, for example, does not show a plant coming

       7       online in 2018; correct?

       8            A.   That is correct.

       9                 MR. SELF:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

      10                 No further questions, Mr. Chairman.

      11                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Mr. Self.

      12                 Commissioners, I'm going to -- I'll go to

      13       staff.

      14                 Staff, you're recognized.

      15                 MS. BROWN:  Excuse me, Mr. Chairman.

      16                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      17       BY MS. BROWN:

      18            Q.   Hi, Mr. Sharra.

      19            A.   Good morning.

      20            Q.   I just have a very few sort of cleanup

      21       questions for you.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Martha, pull your mike --

      23       get a little closer to your mike.  There we go.

      24       BY MS. BROWN:

      25            Q.   I just have a very few cleanup questions for
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       1       you.

       2                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

       3       BY MS. BROWN:

       4            Q.   You just mentioned that there will be

       5       additional receipt points for the delivery of natural

       6       gas with respect to the upstream pipeline and the

       7       EnergySecure pipeline; is that correct?

       8            A.   Yes, ma'am.

       9            Q.   Other than the delivery point for the Riviera

      10       Beach and Cape Canaveral plant, are there any other

      11       delivery points projected to be constructed as part of

      12       the EnergySecure line?

      13            A.   The EnergySecure line will have three

      14       connection points as originally designed:  The Cape

      15       Canaveral Clean Energy Center, the Riviera Beach Clean

      16       Energy Center, as you've referenced, and the Martin

      17       plant, the FPL Martin plant.

      18            Q.   And that's it?

      19            A.   Initially those three delivery points are what

      20       have been identified.

      21            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

      22                 Now we asked Mr. Forrest about earning a rate

      23       of return on the transportation of natural gas through

      24       the pipeline, that this would be the first time for FP&L

      25       to earn a rate of return on the transport -- on the
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       1       transportation of natural gas; is that correct?

       2            A.   Yes, ma'am.

       3            Q.   And then I think on redirect Mr. Forrest said

       4       whether or not FPL or some other pipeline owns the

       5       pipeline, the ratepayer would be charged a rate of

       6       return for the transportation of natural gas; correct?

       7            A.   Yes, ma'am.  My understanding is that if we

       8       purchase natural gas transportation services from a

       9       third party, for example, FGT or Gulfstream, that in the

      10       sale price or the demand charge, if you will, of that is

      11       embedded all the costs of running the business,

      12       including a return of and on capital.

      13            Q.   So really ratepayers should be indifferent to

      14       who owns the pipeline, as long as they are paying fair

      15       market price; correct?

      16            A.   I would think the logic of that would be

      17       correct.

      18            Q.   If FPL owns the pipeline though, the company

      19       will benefit from the rate of return it will earn on its

      20       investment, where if some other company owned the

      21       pipeline, the associated costs would simply be passed

      22       through to ratepayers and FPL would not have the

      23       opportunity to earn a profit; correct?

      24            A.   I believe that's an accurate statement.

      25                 MS. BROWN:  May we just have one minute?
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       1                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Let's just take a

       2       minute.  We won't leave.  Just everybody hold your

       3       places.

       4                 (Pause.)

       5       BY MS. BROWN:

       6            Q.   Mr. Sharra, let me ask you a question about

       7       FERC regulated pipelines.  Are they put at risk if the

       8       line is not fully subscribed?

       9            A.   I am not -- I would not propose that I would

      10       be an expert in FERC regulated pipelines and that

      11       business.  But my understanding would be that they, that

      12       there, there are two types of negotiations that go on on

      13       FERC regulated pipelines.  One would be a negotiated

      14       rate with shippers and the other is a recourse rate.

      15       And my understanding is that if a, if a pipeline fails

      16       to fully subscribe the pipeline, it is at risk.

      17            Q.   Thank you.  Now two, two oddball questions

      18       that were punted to you.

      19                 Based on FPL's proposed accounting treatment,

      20       will FPL begin to accrue AFUDC on costs incurred

      21       beginning January 1, 2010?

      22            A.   Yes, ma'am.  I would like to reference some

      23       notes I have, as I'm not by any means an expert in

      24       utility accounting.  But it is my understanding that

      25       there is a proposed adjustment in a rate case to move
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       1       the pipeline cost out of Account 183 and move it into a

       2       construction work in process, or a CWIP account.  This

       3       would allow FPL to accrue AFUDC from January 1st, 2010,

       4       through the in-service date, which is projected to be

       5       January 1st, 2014.

       6            Q.   So then my understanding is that FP&L has

       7       included costs related to the EnergySecure line in its

       8       rate case filing.

       9            A.   No, ma'am.  That's not my understanding.  And

      10       subject to clarification, it's my understanding there

      11       are no pipeline costs included in FPL's rate case.

      12            Q.   But there is a proposal to move the cost out

      13       of Account 183 and put it in CWIP?

      14            A.   That is my understanding.

      15            Q.   Okay.  All right.  Will FP&L continue to

      16       accrue AFUDC until the EnergySecure line is placed in

      17       service in 2014?

      18            A.   Yes, ma'am.  That is my understanding.

      19            Q.   Okay.

      20            A.   Subject to further clarification.

      21                 MS. BROWN:  All right.  That's all the

      22       questions we have.  Thank you.

      23                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Skop, you're

      24       recognized.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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       1                 Good morning, Mr. Sharra.

       2                 THE WITNESS:  Good morning.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  If I could ask you to turn

       4       to your Exhibit RGS-1, please.

       5                 THE WITNESS:  Bear with me one second, please.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And I think that shows the

       7       big map behind you, although my eyes are not what they

       8       were, once were.

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I just want to understand.

      11       I thought this was a useful graphic, but -- because it

      12       answers some of the questions that I would have

      13       otherwise asked you.

      14                 But am I correct to understand that following

      15       the intrastate pipeline down from the FGT Station 16 to

      16       the lateral, the first lateral that you get to is what

      17       connects to the Canaveral facility; is that correct?

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  Is this working now?

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  That is correct.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And then following

      22       the green dotted line down, you come to the Martin plant

      23       where the gold line shows the existing FPL gas/oil

      24       pipeline; is that correct?

      25                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, Commissioner.  The proposed
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       1       Florida EnergySecure line would terminate at the Martin

       2       plant and would interconnect with, as you say, the gold

       3       line, which is the 18-inch 36-mile segment which goes

       4       from the Martin plant to the FPL 45th Street terminal.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And then there

       6       would be one additional lateral from the 45th Street

       7       terminal over to the Riviera Beach plant; is that

       8       correct?

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  Yes, Commissioner.

      10       There would actually be two laterals.  There would be a

      11       three-mile lateral running from the 45th Street terminal

      12       into the Riviera Beach Clean Energy Center.  We would

      13       also propose to construct a second lateral that would

      14       run from the 45th Street terminal back to the FGT

      15       mainline at the turnpike.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  And with

      17       respect to the existing gas/oil line, I guess

      18       Mr. Forrest did defer to you on this, and it was the

      19       subject of a staff question, but on staff's

      20       Interrogatory Number 157 the question was posed, "Is FPL

      21       aware of any investor-owned electric utility that has a

      22       minimum of 100 miles of contiguous interstate -- or

      23       intrastate pipeline facilities included in its base rate

      24       for which it earns an overall rate of return, and, if

      25       so, please provide the details."  And it has a response.
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       1                 But what I'm concerned about is the existing

       2       gas/oil line from the Martin plant to the 45th Street

       3       terminal.  And I guess what I was wondering is are

       4       those -- obviously a capital investment was made for

       5       that, that line, and is that encompassed to your

       6       knowledge within existing base rates?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  I am not able to address that

       8       question.  I know Mr. Forrest did direct the, the

       9       question my way.  I would believe that Witness Morley

      10       may be better prepared to answer that.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Well, I guess it

      12       would seem to me to be somewhat important to the extent

      13       that Mr. Self in his opening statement suggested that

      14       there was precedent value that attached to the fact that

      15       this had never been done before.  And what I'm trying to

      16       establish is whether in fact this existing 36-mile

      17       pipeline obviously has to be recovered in costs

      18       somewhere.  I would assume it would be base rates, given

      19       the, probably the time it was put into service as

      20       opposed to a clause.  But it would be interesting to

      21       track that down.  So I'll defer to, to that witness.

      22                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I guess -- let me see if I

      24       have any additional questions.

      25                 The one additional question I did have, and
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       1       this was somewhat of a point of confusion from a

       2       question that I heard our staff ask, and I just want to

       3       clarify.  If I heard your prior response correctly, that

       4       consumers would be indifferent as to who actually owned

       5       the pipeline, whether it be Gulfstream, FGT, or FPL, to

       6       the extent that if a third party owns the pipeline,

       7       their return on equity is actually embedded in the

       8       demand charges that the utility has to pay and is passed

       9       through to the consumers; is that correct?

      10                 THE WITNESS:  I believe that would be correct,

      11       yes, Commissioner.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  So if FPL were

      13       granted need and built the pipeline and earned a return

      14       on investment on the pipeline, that would be analogous

      15       to exactly what's happening with the third-party

      16       pipelines, it's just -- but their ROE is embedded,

      17       whereas yours is more transparent; is that correct?

      18                 THE WITNESS:  I believe that's the case.  I

      19       believe where the difference would come and where the

      20       customers of FPL in the State of Florida would not be

      21       indifferent (phonetic) is when the next expansion would

      22       come, because I believe, as Witness Forrest had

      23       described in great detail, the benefits of being able to

      24       expand the 30-inch line.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And not to have
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       1       that -- if I understand the testimony, and I'll let that

       2       speak for itself and the witnesses, but it seems to me

       3       that FPL is asserting that those future expansions would

       4       be borne at a much lower cost than is typically incurred

       5       by the third-party providers today; is that correct?

       6                 THE WITNESS:  That is my understanding, yes,

       7       Commissioner.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  And

       9       then I guess one final question, with respect to the

      10       embedded ROE that the third-party providers, you know,

      11       recover in what they charge FPL, is FPL aware of, of

      12       what that embedded ROE might be to the extent that --

      13       would FPL's existing ROE be lower than what is currently

      14       recovered through a third-party pipeline provider?

      15                 THE WITNESS:  I am not personally familiar

      16       with the ROE that would be embedded either in the FGT or

      17       any other interstate pipeline company.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  Thank

      19       you.

      20                 Actually one follow-up question.  On the

      21       interstate pipeline companies, those are traditionally

      22       regulated by FERC; is that correct?

      23                 THE WITNESS:  Interstate pipeline companies

      24       are traditionally regulated by FERC.  Yes, sir.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And generally
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       1       speaking, in terms of -- well, I won't go there.  I'll

       2       just try and find the answer a different way.  Thank

       3       you.

       4                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you, Commissioner.

       5                 Commissioners, anything further from the

       6       bench?

       7                 Okay.  Mr. Perko.

       8                 MR. PERKO:  No redirect.

       9                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Exhibits.

      10                 MR. PERKO:  Commissioner, at this time -- or,

      11       Mr. Chairman, at this time we would introduce FPL

      12       Exhibits 6, 7, 8 and 9 into the record.

      13                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self?

      14                 MR. SELF:  No objections.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Without objection, show it

      16       done.  Exhibits 6, 7, 8 and 9.

      17                 (Exhibits 6, 7, 8 and 9 admitted into the

      18       record.)

      19                 And I presume this witness will also be coming

      20       back for rebuttal?

      21                 MR. PERKO:  That's correct.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  So you'll be on recess.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Chair?

      24                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Commissioner Skop.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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       1                 I don't want to go into the rebuttal

       2       testimony, but I do want to ask two additional

       3       questions, I'm sorry, that I -- actually, hold on.

       4       There's a lot of paper in front of me this morning, so I

       5       apologize.

       6                 Mr. Sexton (sic.), I guess in your rebuttal

       7       testimony you get into some additional analysis that

       8       you've done.  But generally speaking, it seems that

       9       you've compared using the existing fuel forecast along

      10       with what various scenarios A, B, and C in terms of

      11       cases that FPL might do with the existing or excess

      12       capacity on the proposed pipeline; is that correct?  I

      13       want to make sure I've got the right witness, but I

      14       believe I do.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  You may be referring to Witness

      16       Sexton, who is looking at upstream receipt points,

      17       deliverability, although I did --

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I'm sorry.  I'm looking at

      19       S and getting very confused.  So I apologize.  I

      20       probably have like 3,000 pieces of paper in front of me.

      21       So my apologies, and I'll reserve that for Mr. Sexton.

      22                 Generally speaking though on one final

      23       question, with respect to FERC regulating interstate

      24       pipelines, I think the analogy -- and feel free to

      25       answer if you're able to -- but historically FERC has
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       1       been very liberal with ROEs granted to interstate

       2       pipelines or interstate transmission; is that your

       3       general understanding?

       4                 THE WITNESS:  I'm afraid I can't address that

       5       topic.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

       7                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

       8                 Commissioners, anything further for this

       9       witness?

      10                 Okay.  You're on recess.

      11                 You may call your next witness.

      12                 And to the parties, just be advised of the

      13       time constraints that I've put in, because we do want to

      14       allow you an opportunity to take a break, as well as the

      15       Commissioners to take a break and our staff to get a

      16       break and come back in.

      17                 You may proceed.

      18                 MR. GOORLAND:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman and

      19       Commissioners.  Scott Goorland for Florida Power &

      20       Light.  FPL calls Dr. Rosemary Morley.

      21                 And while, while she's setting up, I'll note

      22       that Ms. Morley was not one of the folks in the room

      23       this morning who was sworn in.

      24                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  So I'll need to swear

      25       Ms. Morley in.

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       178

       1                 And, Ms. Morley, before I swear you in -- Dr.

       2       Morley, before I swear you in, I've got to let you know

       3       that they've deferred a lot of stuff to you.  They said

       4       you're the witness, you're the witness.  So would you

       5       please stand and raise your right hand?

       6                 (Witness sworn.)

       7                 Please be seated.

       8                 You may proceed.

       9                           ROSEMARY MORLEY

      10       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power &

      11       Light Company and, having been duly sworn, testified as

      12       follows:

      13                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      14            Q.   Dr. Morley, would you please state your name

      15       and business address.

      16            A.   Rosemary Morley, 700 Universe Boulevard, Juno

      17       Beach, Florida.

      18            Q.   And by whom are you employed and in what

      19       capacity?

      20            A.   I'm employed by Florida Power & Light as the

      21       Director of Load Forecasting.

      22            Q.   And have you prepared and caused to be filed

      23       28 pages of prefiled direct testimony in this

      24       proceeding?

      25            A.   Yes, I have.
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       1            Q.   And did you also cause to be filed errata to

       2       your testimony on July 24th, 2008?

       3            A.   Yes, I did.

       4            Q.   And do you have any further changes or

       5       revisions to your prefiled direct testimony?

       6            A.   No, I do not.

       7            Q.   And with those changes, if I asked you the

       8       same questions contained in your direct testimony, would

       9       your answers be the same?

      10            A.   Yes, they would.

      11            Q.   And are you also sponsoring any exhibits to

      12       your direct testimony?

      13            A.   Yes, I am.

      14            Q.   And do those exhibits consist of 21 pages

      15       shown as RM-1 through RM-21, also identified as staff's

      16       exhibits, on staff's exhibit list as Numbers 13 through

      17       33?

      18            A.   Yes, I am.

      19                 MR. GOORLAND:  And, Mr. Chairman, I ask that

      20       Ms. -- Dr. Morley's prefiled direct testimony be

      21       inserted into the record as though read.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  The prefiled testimony of

      23       the witness will be inserted into the record as though

      24       read.

      25                 (Exhibits 13 through 33 marked for
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       1       identification.)
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       1       BY MR. GOORLAND:

       2            Q.   Dr. Morley, have you prepared a summary of

       3       your direct testimony?

       4            A.   Yes, I have.

       5            Q.   Would you please provide your summary to the

       6       Commission?

       7            A.   Yes.

       8                 Good morning, Commissioners.  The purpose of

       9       my testimony is to address Florida Power & Light's --

      10                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Dr. Morley, excuse me.

      11       Would you pull the mike a little closer to you?  There

      12       you go.

      13                 THE WITNESS:  Is that better?

      14                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Yes, ma'am.  Would you mind

      15       starting over?

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Not at all.

      17                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Thank you.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Good morning, Commissioners.

      19       The purpose of my testimony is to address Florida Power

      20       & Light Company's forecast of customers, sales and peak

      21       demands.

      22                 FPL's forecast reflects a careful

      23       consideration of the factors influencing the long-term

      24       growth of our customers, sales and peak demands.  In

      25       developing the forecast, we have reviewed economic and
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       1       demographic projections from a number of noted sources

       2       and performed a thorough examination of current and past

       3       patterns and growth.

       4                 FPL's forecast acknowledges the seriousness of

       5       the economic downturn we are currently experiencing.  At

       6       the same time, we must recognize the strong long-term

       7       growth Florida has historically experienced, growth that

       8       even the most seasoned experts have repeatedly

       9       underestimated.

      10                 Accordingly, our forecast takes into account

      11       the effects of the recession we are currently

      12       experiencing and also takes into account reasonable

      13       assumptions regarding Florida's long-term economic and

      14       demographic growth.

      15                 In addition to long-term economic and

      16       demographic growth, other key assumptions in our sales

      17       and peak demand forecasts are trends in appliance

      18       efficiency standards and changes in the composition of

      19       our wholesale contracts.  As such, our forecast

      20       recognizes factors that may increase or decrease the

      21       long-term sales and peak growth.

      22                 These key assumptions are incorporated into

      23       econometric models in order to derive our load forecast.

      24       Econometric modeling is the industry standard for

      25       utility forecasting, and these models have been reviewed
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       1       and accepted by the Commission in FPL's past filings.

       2                 Based on statistically verified econometric

       3       models and reasonable assumptions regarding population

       4       growth, the economy and appliance standards, FPL's load

       5       forecast represents a realistic and balanced projection

       6       of long-term growth.

       7                 While the initial years of the forecast are

       8       significantly below the levels forecasted in last year's

       9       Ten-Year Site Plan, substantial long-term growth is

      10       still projected.  Between now and 2018, FPL's summer

      11       peak demand is expected to increase by more than

      12       5,000 megawatts, a cumulative increase of 24 percent

      13       over the 2008 level.

      14                 Large increases in sales are also projected,

      15       with a cumulative increase of 21,000 megawatt hours

      16       between 2008 and 2018, a cumulative increase of

      17       19 percent.  Over the long term the cumulative growth is

      18       even larger.  By 2030 the summer peak demand is

      19       projected to increase by over 60 percent relative to the

      20       2008 level, while energy sales are projected to increase

      21       by over 50 percent.

      22                 In conclusion, FPL's forecast calls for robust

      23       long-term growth in customers, sales and peak demands.

      24       This concludes my summary.

      25                 MR. GOORLAND:  And at this time I tender the
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       1       witness for cross-examination.

       2                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Mr. Self.

       3                 MR. SELF:  We have no questions for this

       4       witness, Mr. Chairman.

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Staff?

       6                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       7       BY MS. BROWN:

       8            Q.   Good afternoon, Ms. Morley.

       9            A.   Good afternoon.

      10            Q.   I was just trying to check whether it was

      11       morning or afternoon.

      12                 I have a few questions to ask about the origin

      13       of the forecast that you've used in this docket.

      14                 Would it be correct to say that in the normal

      15       course of business you produce your short- and long-term

      16       load forecast on an annual basis and that those

      17       forecasts are included as part of FPL's Ten-Year Site

      18       Plan filed with the Commission?

      19            A.   Yes.  And, in fact, the forecast in this

      20       docket is the, is our forecast we used in the 2009

      21       Ten-Year Site Plan.

      22            Q.   Okay.  Did you file testimony in FPL's current

      23       rate case, Docket 080677?

      24            A.   Yes, I did.

      25            Q.   And is it true that your testimony in that
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       1       docket is to present the load forecast used there, and

       2       that that forecast is the same as the forecast used in

       3       this docket?

       4            A.   Yes, that is true.

       5            Q.   You did not file testimony in this year's

       6       nuclear power plant cost recovery filing; correct?

       7            A.   That's correct.

       8            Q.   Are you aware that the long-run forecast of

       9       summer peak demand contained in your 2009 Ten-Year Site

      10       Plan is used as an input into the economic feasibility

      11       analysis of the nuclear plants in that docket?

      12            A.   Yes.  That's my understanding.

      13            Q.   Did you file testimony in the West County

      14       Energy Center Unit 3 power plant need determination?

      15            A.   Yes, I did.

      16            Q.   And in that docket what were FPL's population

      17       projections based on?

      18            A.   Those population projections were based on the

      19       November 2007 estimates from the University of Florida.

      20            Q.   And in that docket -- and I guess I should

      21       name the docket, it's 080203 -- did FP&L modify the

      22       University of Florida's projections?

      23            A.   No, we did not.  And the reason we didn't is

      24       because those projections from the University of Florida

      25       were not substantially below the long-run growth we have
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       1       historically experienced; whereas in this case, the

       2       University of Florida is forecasting not just slower

       3       growth from the current recession but actually a

       4       permanently lower level of growth going out ten years

       5       and so forth.  So in this case we did modify the

       6       forecast from the University of Florida.

       7            Q.   In your testimony at Page 9, Lines 6 through

       8       9 -- let me know when you're there.

       9            A.   Did you say Page 9?

      10            Q.   Uh-huh.

      11            A.   I am there.

      12            Q.   You indicate that based on ten-year

      13       forecasting horizon, U.S. population projections have,

      14       since 1991 have been within 5.9 percent of the actual

      15       population growth; is that correct?

      16            A.   Yes.  And to clarify, it isn't that they've

      17       been within.  They have been below.  In fact, they,

      18       their forecast from the University of Florida, their

      19       long-term forecast going out ten years has been

      20       consistently below the actual population level.

      21            Q.   And just to clarify for the purposes of this

      22       docket, if we were to look at a ten-year forecasting

      23       horizon, what year would we look at?

      24            A.   We would be looking at 2018, consistent with

      25       the current 2009 Ten-Year Site Plan.
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       1            Q.   Now I have a question, part of which refers to

       2       your rebuttal testimony.

       3                 MS. BROWN:  And if, if I have permission, I

       4       would like to ask, or we can defer until we get to

       5       rebuttal.

       6                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Let's, let's check with both

       7       of the parties before we do that.  We'll ask Mr. Butler

       8       first and then we'll ask Mr. Self.

       9                 Mr. Butler?  I'm sorry.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  I am flexible to go either way,

      11       but I guess my preference would be to defer it to

      12       rebuttal.  I mean, that way you're not sort of getting

      13       ahead of yourself, and certainly can reference back to

      14       what is raised in the direct.

      15                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  Mr. Self?

      16                 MR. SELF:  I don't have a preference, Mr.

      17       Chairman.  I do recognize that as a general proposition

      18       there may be questions in direct that sort of lead into

      19       rebuttal.  Certainly when there's rebuttal questions,

      20       you may have to kind of reference some direct in order

      21       for the question to make sense.  Whatever works.

      22                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Why don't we do this, why

      23       don't we just do it at, during rebuttal.  Okay?

      24                 MS. BROWN:  That's fine.  That's fine.

      25       BY MS. BROWN:
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       1            Q.   During your, during your deposition you

       2       indicated that your load forecasts are used to determine

       3       what is needed in terms of future generation; correct?

       4            A.   Yes.

       5            Q.   Your load forecast was used to determine the

       6       generation expansion plan that was used by Witness

       7       Enjamio to evaluate the cost-effectiveness of the

       8       EnergySecure pipeline; correct?

       9            A.   That's correct.  Of course, Witness Enjamio

      10       would have to address the details of that.

      11            Q.   Sure.  During your deposition you also

      12       indicated that you would expect the forecasting error to

      13       increase as the forecasting horizon becomes greater;

      14       correct?

      15            A.   Yes.

      16            Q.   And is this in part because an error in the

      17       short-term forecast becomes compounded as you go out in

      18       time?

      19            A.   I'm not sure.  I think, you know, if the

      20       question has to do with our short-term forecasting

      21       error, the fact is that our forecast, our sales forecast

      22       for 2009 is, is very close to, to actuals.  So I think

      23       based on that I certainly would not expect to see any

      24       compounding.

      25            Q.   But in general wouldn't you agree with that
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       1       proposition?

       2            A.   Yes.  And in fact I think what I may have

       3       mentioned during the deposition is that FPL has also had

       4       a tendency to under forecast long-term peak.  And as we

       5       go further out in time from five years to ten years,

       6       that tendency gets larger.

       7            Q.   Do you believe that there are unique

       8       challenges in forecasting short-term population growth

       9       at this time, given the recession, which you indicated

      10       is more severe than those seen over the last 25 years?

      11            A.   I would say no.  Again, based on the accuracy

      12       of our short-term sales forecast, which has been very

      13       accurate, I think if there are challenges in the

      14       short-term forecast, we're meeting them.

      15                 I would like to say that while our short-term

      16       forecast for the sales is right on, is we actually ended

      17       up under forecasting the summer peak this year.  We had

      18       some unusually warm weather and we actually ended up

      19       having a higher peak than forecasted.  I think it was

      20       about 1,200 megawatts higher.  That really would have

      21       been the level we forecasted for 2013.  And, again,

      22       that's really more a function of the weather, not a

      23       function of the customer forecast or the population

      24       forecast, which, you know, we think we've otherwise got

      25       a really good handle on the short-term forecast.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Ms. Brown, before you go

       2       further, let's do this, kind of --

       3                 MS. BROWN:  Actually, Mr. Chairman, we're

       4       done.

       5                 CHAIRMAN CARTER:  Okay.  All right then.

       6       Well, let's do this.  Commissioners, before we come back

       7       to the bench, we'll go ahead on and take our break and

       8       come back.  That will give the parties an opportunity

       9       and as well as our staff an opportunity to kind of get

      10       their thoughts and everything together.

      11                 With that, pursuant to what I said before,

      12       we'll come back at 1:45.  We're on recess.

      13                 (Recess taken.)

      14                 (Transcript continues in sequence with Volume

      15       2.)

      16
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